

TRAINING GUIDE

Mobile Intensive

러는 러는 러는 러는

Mobile Intensive - Configuration

This guide covers the Lucity Mobile 2.0 applications for Android Tablet and iOS (iPad, iPhone, iPod Touch). This is the release which support Lucity 2016 and higher. Most of this content is also relevant for Lucity 2015r2 and earlier, but there will be differences. See the ACT 2015 user guide for material applicable to that version.

The Lucity Android Tablet and Lucity iOS applications have been designed to work under the same framework as the Lucity Web application. Configuration for Lucity Web carries forward to these mobile devices automatically.

These mobile applications have 3 core components.

- Dashboard
- Views/Forms
- GIS

The goal of this session is show how to get a tablet working out in the field for online and/or offline use and assumes that Lucity Web (dashboards, views, and forms) are already configured.

Contents

Installation and Setup2
Permissions2
Installing Mobile Server2
System Settings for Lucity Mobile
Downloading and Installing4
Configuring the application for first time use
For Android:4
For iOS:
Additional Recommended Configuration6
Logging in
Logging out9
Changing Password9
Troubleshooting login
Warning Prompts
Local Tablet Log 11
Server Log 14
Managing Logged in Users
Final Configuration Consideration

Installation and Setup

Permissions

Access to the mobile apps is controlled through a permission in Lucity. In the permissions form in Lucity Security, these permissions are located under "Mobile".

Modules View F	Permissions View		
Modules:		Permissions:	
	in	Run	
Elect	tric		
📃 🗄 🗌 Equi	P		
📃 🗄 🗌 Gene	eral		
😟 庄 🖂 GIS			
🗄 🖳 İnv			
📄 🖳 Mobi	ile		
···· 🗸 /	Android Tablet Product		
🔤 🖬 🖬	OS Mobile		

Users must have the Run permission to the mobile application they will be using. They must also have permission to any modules they need to access while in the field. For example, if users need to view Work Orders in the field, they must have Run permission to Work Orders. If they need to edit Work Orders in the field, they need permissions that permit this. This is no different than the module level permissions configured for Lucity Desktop or Lucity Web.

Installing Mobile Server

Mobile Server is available on the Lucity installation media.



It should be installed to a web server (Windows Server 2008r2+). If the tablets will be using VPN or local Wi-Fi connections, this can be an internal web server. If no, this application must be placed in the DMZ so that it is available to the tablets.

Choosing to install with SSL (https) is recommended if you will be using Android and REQUIRED if you are using iOS regardless of whether you are using a secure VPN.

In addition to the Lucity Mobile product, if you want users to be able to upload and download documents, you will also need to install the Lucity Document Server. The Document Server does not typically get installed in the DMZ, it gets installed on an internal web server which can access the network locations which contain the files to be uploaded and downloaded. The Lucity Document Server is an application used for multiple applications within Lucity including Lucity Web, Lucity Citizen Portal, Lucity Mobile Server, Lucity Citizen Portal REST API, and the Lucity REST API.

Ensure that firewall settings are configured to allow Lucity Mobile Server to make unsolicited requests to the Lucity Document Server on the port that is used for the Lucity Document Server (port 80) if the Lucity Document Server is installed on a different server.

The Lucity Android and iOS tablets will not access the Lucity Document Server directly. All requests for documents (download and upload) are proxied through the Lucity Mobile Server.

Lastly you must configure your network to allow necessary access to your GIS Server. There are several ways this can be done and goes beyond the scope of this session. Regardless of whether you are hitting the primary ArcGIS instance or you are using an ArcGIS web adapter, the following requirements must be met:

- The mobile devices must be able to connect to the ArcGIS web services. GIS web service access is not proxied through Lucity Mobile Server
- The Lucity Mobile Server host must be able to connect to the ArcGIS web services. Lucity Mobile Server connects to these servers to get metadata about the layers (what layer is the sewer pipe layer, what layer is the water hydrant layer, etc). If Lucity Mobile Server cannot access to the web services, the maps will show up on the tablets but any attempts to do Show in Map, create work orders or inspections or other Lucity specific functions in the map will fail. This is discussed more in the GIS setup later in this session

System Settings for Lucity Mobile

It is not required to configure anything in System Settings for mobile to work. However, there are several settings you can review and edit.

		\sim	
dmin	Portal	(\mathbf{x})	
 (MITHIT)		0	

Mobile	
Setting Description J [®]	Setting Value
Log device latitude and longitude	TRUE
Max Columns Returned	20
Maximum number of days to store device location history	30
Maximum records to return per request for mobile	100
Update the offline Android cache nightly	TRUE
Update the offline iOS cache nightly	TRUE
Url for the Lucity Mobile Server Virtual Directory	https://demo.lucity.net/LucityMobileServ

Log Device Latitude and Longitude configures whether the mobile tablets will send tablet location information to Lucity Server for logging. Maximum number of days to store the device location history allows you to configure how long you want that information stored.

Max Columns Returned allows you to increase how many columns a grid can display in mobile (more columns requires more memory in iOS and more vertical space in Android).

Maximum number of records to return per request for mobile allows you to limit the view page size for mobile users to a specific cap. Do not reduce this below 15.

Update the offline...cache nightly allows you to configure which types of offline caches you need the system to generate. If you are not using offline, set both of these to FALSE. Offline caches are resource intensive on the server although they only happen at night (unless a cache is forced). It is a good idea to only enable the caches you need.

Downloading and Installing

Lucity distributes all mobile applications via the standard app stores (Apple App store and Google Play store). Search Lucity and the app is generally easy to find in the search results.

We recommend configuring automatic updates for the Android application.

Configuring the application for first time use

Once installed, tablet users (or whoever will be configuring the tablets) will need the following information:

- The host name you want the tablets to use to connect to the server.
- The name of the virtual directory used during the install. If the default was left, this is LucityMobileServer.
- The port used for the installation. The default port is 443. If SSL was not chosen as an option during the Lucity Mobile Server installation, the default port is 80.
- Whether or not SSL was used.



N -	ត្តិ 📙 9:(06 AM
	?	>
		͡ 9:0 ■ 2

For iOS:

iPad 🗢 🛛 👔	3:59 AM	* 42% 🕞
		Next
NAME		
Live		
The user specified name that identifies this particular of	onfiguration.	
HOST		
Host		
The path to the web server.		
PAGE SIZE		
15		
The number of records that show up in a view.		
CONNECTION TIMEOUT		
12000		
The number of milliseconds before the program stops	attempting to connect.	
PORT		
443		
SCHEME		
https		
REST APPLICATION PATH		
LucityMobileServer		
The virtual directory of the Lucity Rest Application.		
Enable Full Logging		\bigcirc
This turns on more logging and is useful to Lucity Supp	port when trying to diagnose problems.	

Name is a user friendly name for the dataset you are logging into. We commonly call this the client. If you have a training/test and a production environment, your tablet can point to both environments. You can use the Name to help distinguish between these environments.

The Host is the name of the server where the Lucity Mobile Server product is installed. This may be a server name, it may be an IP address, or it may be an alias. For example, your server might be called JARVIS but your alias might be "mobile.cityOfLucityKS.gov", or if you do not have an alias or public DNS, your server name may be the externally routable IP address of the server.

For Android the hostname also needs to include a port (for non-default ports only). If the port is 80 or 443 this is not necessary. If you installed Lucity Mobile Server to port 8081 on a server called CityOfLucityServer, the host would be "CityOfLucityServer:8081".

The scheme identifies whether http or https are being used. These are the only 2 schemes supported.

For iOS, there is a separate port field. The default value, 443, is for https installations on the default SSL port.

The REST application path is the name of the virtual directory used when installing the software. By default this is LucityMobileServer.

Once the host, scheme, application path, and possibly port are set, click the save 🗐 in Android or

the Next in iOS.

Additional Recommended Configuration

There are several other configuration items that should be reviewed and set:

nicole Settings for Live		?	
APPLICATION			
Page Size			
Device Identifier nicole Nexus 7			
Enable Full Logging			
Enable Location Tracking			
MAP			
Show In Map Search Priority Prefer Assets			
Default Category OB2000 - Plumbing			
Enable Full Logging	(\mathbb{D}	
This turns on more logging and is useful to Lucity Support when trying to diagnose problems.			
MAP SETTINGS			
Show In Map Search Priority	Prefer A	ssets	
Default Category	CC - Call C	enter	

DEVICE IDENTIFIER (ANDROID ONLY): The device identifier is used to identify the device in server logs and in activations if licensing is a per device license. By default this is populated with the first user that logged in combined with the model of the device. This can be edited as needed. If device licensing is in use, you may want to delete the activation that is tied to the old name (if it exists). It is against the Lucity license agreement to use this bypass Lucity licensing. The device identifier for Apple devices cannot be changed.

DEFAULT CATEGORY: This is the category that will be used as the default category for requests and work orders generated from an address or XY in the map from the tablet. This is stored per tablet per login. This means you can have your graffiti crew and your sidewalk crew share a tablet. But it also means this must be set for each user. Once set, it will remember it for the next login.

ENABLE LOCATION TRACKING: Lucity allows you to configure your tablets to send their location periodically to the Lucity Server. You can enable or disable this feature on a per user basis. Users can also enable and disable this but only if you have granted the Configure Location Tracking permission for the user. By default location tracking is enabled. Location tracking is not yet available for Apple devices in the current release but will be added Fall 2016.

M	odules View Permissions View	
	Modules:	Permissions:
	₽·□Admin	Configure Location Tracking
	i≘ Electric i≣ Equipment	
	🖶 🖂 General	
	i≘ GIS i≡ Lucity Apps	
	Dashboard	
	Lucity Mobile	
	🚍 - 🛄 Mobile	
	Android Tablet Product	
	Mobile Offline Caching Setup	
	work Orders for Android ■	
	in Sewer in Storm	
	teet	
	iarehouse iaro Water	
	Work	
1		

Logging in

Once the user logs in they are kept logged in until they explicitly log out again or until their token expires.

Lucity 2.0			+ :
	Enter Cre	edentials	
	Username:		
Live	nicole		
and a second s	Password:		
and a second	Cancel	Login	and and a second se
			1 minut
	Conr	nect	
Help	Login		Cancel
nicole			
Password			
	Login		

Logging out

To log out of the device, select "Log Out" from the menu. Logging out will prevent unauthorized users from getting access to modify the data in the Lucity Mobile application. If the Android or iOS application is in an offline state, it is not possible to logout. It is particularly important for devices which are using the application offline to use additional layers of security for device access such as a device passcode or other protection.

Drill Test	* 23% 💷
Drill Test	Modules
	Log
	Help
	About
	Settings
	Log Out

Changing Password

Users can change their password directly from the mobile applications but only if they are able to successfully login with their current password. To change a password, select "Change Password" from the dashboard menu in iOS or Android.

Android

Change Password			
Username: nicole			
Current Password:	Current Password:		
New Password:			
Confirm New Password:			
View Requirements			
Cancel	Okay		

iOS

〈 Dashboard	Change Password	Requirements
nicole		
Current Password		
New Password		
Confirm New Password		
	Change Password	

Users can also view the password requirements.

Android

Password Requirements

Password must have a minimum length of 6 characters.

Password must be updated after 99999 days.

Password is not allowed to be easily guessed which means that it cannot contain your login ID, your name, or your email, and it cannot be all the same character, a sequence of characters (abcdefg or 54321), or a value from the banned password list.

Okay

iOS

Password Requirements

Password must have a minimum length of 6 characters.

Password must be updated after 99999 days.

Password is not allowed to be easily guessed which means that it cannot contain your login ID, your name, or your email, and it cannot be all the same character, a sequence of characters (abcdefg or 54321), or a value from the banned password list.

Ok

Troubleshooting login

Typically the initial hurdle in a tablet implementation is getting the devices logged in. It can be challenging to know what to put in the setup when configuring it, users may not have the password right, or may have the username or activation wrong potentially. You also may have problems with the network or firewall or VPN (if applicable) not being configured properly.

There are 3 sources to use when troubleshooting the devices.

Warning Prompts

If there is a problem with the username and password, the user will be notified that the credentials are wrong "Invalid username or password". They will also get told if their password is about to expire on Android (and will on iOS Fall 2016).

Local Tablet Log

There is a local log on the tablet which will log errors. If logon fails, you can refer to this log for more details on the failure. The log is accessed from the client setup screen (it is not accessible in the login screen any longer).

The log shows the most recent entries at the top of the list

iPad 중		2:32 PM	
Da		Log Messages E	
	AUTHENTICATION E 2014-08-19 14:30 - HTTP R	RROR quest Class: LCYValidateUserWebServiceOperation HTTP Request URL: http://iosdev.lucity.net	>
	AUTHENTICATION E 2014-08-19 14:22 - HTTP R	RROR quest Class: LCYValidateUserWebServiceOperation HTTP Request URL: http://iosdev.lucity.net:	>
	AUTHENTICATION E 2014-08-19 14:21 - HTTP R	RROR quest Class: LCYValidateUserWebServiceOperation HTTP Request URL: http://iosdev.lucity.net:	>
	AUTHENTICATION E 2014-08-19 14:21 - HTTP R	RROR quest Class: LCYValidateUserWebServiceOperation HTTP Request URL: http://iosdev.lucity.net:	>
	SERVER ERROR 2014-08-19 14:12 - HTTP R	equest Class: LCYWorkCategoryWebService HTTP Request URL: https://iosdev.lucity.net:443/Lu	>
	AUTHENTICATION E	RROR	>
	L EXCEPTIONS RES	EMAIL A COP	Y
Connectivity Ensure Connection			
Exception UnknownHostException			

Select an entry summary to view the extended details in the log.

C Log Messages 2014-08-19 14:30	- AUTHENTICATION E			
			I	
HTTP Request Class: _CYValidateUserWebServiceOperation				
HTTP Request URL: http://iosdev.lucity.net2:80/LucityMobileServer/Users	s.svc/Validate?format=json	&Take=15		
HTTP Request Method: POST				
HTTP Request Headers: { Accept = "application/json"; "Cache-Control" = "no-transform"; "Content-Type" = "application/json"; LucityMobileAuthorization = "DEVICE 800DEE4B- MobileiOS USERID nicole"; LucityISF = "0,1"; LucityIOSVersionNumber = "1.3 7.1.2 iPad 3 WiFi'		23E9C4 KEY PhElrsGiUy LICENSE		
} HTTP Request Body: {"Initials": "nicole", "Password": "*************************				
(Initials : nicole , Password :} Data Received: (null)				
Web Service Response Error: Error Domain=NSURLErrorDomain Code=-1003 A s UserInfo=0x18bb3f70 {NSErrorFailingURLStringKey= Validate?format=json&Take=15, NSErrorFailingURLK Validate?format=json&Take=15, NSLocalizedDescrip NSUnderlyingError=0x18bd1180 "A server with the s	enttp://iosdev.lucity.net2:80 ey=http://iosdev.lucity.net2 tion=A server with the spec	D/LucityMobileServer/Users.svc/ 2:80/LucityMobileServer/Users.svc/ cified hostname could not be found.,		
	EXCEPTIONS REST	r	EMAIL A COPY	X CLI
Connectivity				-
Insure Connection	Connectivity			
Exception	Summary: Ensure Cor	nnection		
InknownHostException	When: 08/19/2014 2:3	35:35:154 PM		
ogin Successful	User: nicole			
.ogin Delayed	Client: Live			
Activation	Details:			
Validation Failed Unauthorized	java.lang.RuntimeException java.net.UnknownHostExce Stack Trace:	n eptio <mark>: Unable to resolve host "iosdev.lucity.net</mark>	2": No address associated with hostname	e
HttpPost - 401: Unauthorized http://iosdev.lucity.net/LucityMobileServer/Users.svc/?Functi.	java.lang.RuntimeException	n: java.net.UnknownHostException: Unable to	resolve host "iosdev.lucity.net2": No addr	ess as

Frequently a failure will be logged in more than one log entry depending on the cause of the failure. Sometimes the log is helpful, other times you may need to resort to additional troubleshooting measures. If you are working with support or want an email of the log, you can email one entry or an entire log. In Android, to email log entries select the entry, then click "Email a Copy". It will ask you whether you want to email just one entry or all entries.

Choose Number	of Entries	
Do you want to get th	ne selected entry or all en	tries?
Cancel	All	Selected
	ettings for Live	
APPLICATION		
Page Size		
Device Identifier nicole Nexus 7		
Enable Full Logo	ging	
Enable Location	Tracking	
МАР		
Show In Map Se Prefer Assets	earch Priority	
Default Categor	N.	

Default Category OB2000 - Plumbing

In iOS to send one log entry, click the menu and select Email.

Log Messages 2014-08-19 14:30 - AUTHENTICATION ERROR	<u>Ļ</u>	🙆 ሰ
	Delete	
HTTP Request Class: LCYValidateUserWebServiceOperation	Email	
HTTP Request URL: http://iosdev.lucity.net2:80/LucityMobileServer/Users.svc/Validate?format=json&Take=15		
HTTP Request Method: POST		
HTTP Request Headers:		

To email an entire log in iOS, navigate back to "Log Messages" and Click Email All at the bottom of the screen

AUTHENTICATION ERROR 2014-08-19 14:30 - HTTP Request Cla	sss: LCYValidateUserWebServiceOperation HTTP Request URL: http://iosdev.lucity.net	>
AUTHENTICATION ERROR 2014-08-19 14:22 - HTTP Request Cla	ass: LCYValidateUserWebServiceOperation HTTP Request URL: http://iosdev.lucity.net:	>
AUTHENTICATION ERROR 2014-08-19 14:21 - HTTP Request Cla	ass: LCYValidateUserWebServiceOperation HTTP Request URL: http://iosdev.lucity.net:	>
AUTHENTICATION ERROR 2014-08-19 14:21 - HTTP Request Cla	ass: LCYValidateUserWebServiceOperation HTTP Request URL: http://iosdev.lucity.net:	>
SERVER ERROR 2014-08-19 14:12 - HTTP Request Cla	ass: LCYWorkCategoryWebService HTTP Request URL: https://iosdev.lucity.net:443/Lu	>
AUTHENTICATION ERROR 2014-08-19 14:12 - HTTP Request Cla	ass: LCYActivationWebServiceOperation HTTP Request URL: https://iosdev.lucity.net:4	>
LOCAL ERROR 2014-08-19 14:11 - The authentication	key could not be retrieved from the local database.	>
LOCAL ERROR 2014-08-19 14:11 - The authentication	key could not be retrieved from the local database.	>
AUTHENTICATION ERROR 2014-08-19 14:11 - HTTP Request Cla	sss: LCYValidateUserWebServiceOperation HTTP Request URL: https://iosdev.lucity.ne	>



If error logging is not providing enough information, logging can be increased. This is done in settings.

In Android, full logging can only be enabled after logging in. It is reached by clicking the menu and selecting "View Settings" from Android.

GO OFFLINE	MAP MODULES
	View Settings
	View Log
	View About
	View Help
	Log Out
	Exit

In this dialog, toggle Enable Full Logging On Full logging is a time forward setting.

Server Log

In addition to the tablet log, it may be helpful to view server logs. Server logs may provide more information about why a tablet will not activate. The two recommended server logs to review are the rolling log located in the installation directory of Lucity Mobile Server (under a folder called Logs) and the Application Event Viewer logs on the web server.

Server logs are where you would find out of licenses are not available, a user is not configured properly, or if something else was misconfigured on the server.

Managing Logged in Users

When a user logs into the tablet, they will be able to continue using the app until their login token expires. By default this is 10 hours. After the 10 hours (or right before the 10 hour window) they will be prompted to login again to continue using the application.

If you think a device has been compromised and need to revoke access to the currently logged in user immediately, you can do that through the Security Tokens interface in Lucity Web. If the user's password has been compromised you also should change their password.

To revoke a token, select the user in the Security Tokens of the admin portal

	L Admin Portal 🛞	+			
Home + Reports	▲ Initials	First Name	Last Name	Expiration	Temporary Alias
Users And Licenses	🗌 Tyler			09/02/2016 9:06:28 PM	FEAA7F56-5548-4659-94F8-404B37026B1D
Security Tokens	🗌 🗌 Tyler			09/02/2016 9:06:58 PM	26FCCA55-2D28-495E-83DA-68AEB025CBI
Client Licenses	🗌 kwickma	Kevin	Wickman	09/02/2016 3:14:13 AM	59E009EE-E0CA-48D1-99F2-0EE2F6DCE69
User License Manager	🗌 MattW	Matt	Wehrly	09/02/2016 9:20:03 PM	F588D45D-5BD4-42E6-8E7B-944C6930FF4:
- Settings	MattW	Matt	Wehrly	09/02/2016 9:23:23 PM	C329FEC7-7024-4070-91BB-9D18F00AA09
	Nicole	Nicole	Schmidt	09/02/2016 11:38:56 PM	B2231855-0235-496A-B07A-3C357A28D966
	🗌 pmonsh	Peter	Monshizadeh	09/02/2016 5:49:35 PM	9333A210-AC12-45EA-9B9E-F9C5A600825
	pmonsh	Peter	Monshizadeh	09/02/2016 5:49:57 PM	3B71F111-D19A-47E0-82DB-0571A24E8AE
	pmonsh	Peter	Monshizadeh	09/02/2016 7:35:19 PM	D74CEBF9-610C-4856-ABDD-5BEE44CF25

And click the Delete Selected Alias button

Delete Selected Alias

Final Configuration Consideration

If tablets are in your office for configuration, and if users will be going offline with maps. It is a good idea to load offline basemap tile packages to the device. Lucity does not current support downloading tiled base map packages (tpk) over WIFI or over 3G. They must be present and available on the device to be used.

Offline Basemap Configuration and installation will be covered with Offline content in this session.

TRAINING GUIDE

Mobile Intensive Dashboard and Views

러는 러는 러는 러는

Mobile Intensive – Dashboards, Views, and Forms

User Interface - Dashboard and Views

There are 3 major components to mobile. These correlate to the 3 portions of the Lucity Web application. These 3 components are the dashboard, views and forms, and GIS.

Contents

Dashboard
Asset Trees and Data Drills5
Modules Menu
Configuring Dashboards for Mobile Use
Mobile Views 11
Sorting
Filters
Viewing attached documents
Toolkits
Selection Mode
Create Work Order 27
Create Request
Deleting records on the tablet
Navigating child records
Open in a New View
Configuring Views for mobile
How user permissions affect views
Documents
Working with Documents in Views
Editing and Deleting Documents
Forms Introduction
Navigation
Navigation in Android
Navigation in iOS 42
Forms in Detail
Adding Records
Adding Child Records
Tools available on forms
Using Forms in iOS

	Adding Child Records and Available Tools in iOS	55
	Errors displayed on save	56
	Warning Prompts	57
	Parts Inventory Prompts	57
Со	nfiguring Forms	58

Dashboard

The dashboard is comprised of multiple dashboard views which appear on the left side of the page: Android



iOS

iPad 🗢		4:30 PM		
Dashboards		Supervisors		
Drill Test	1	Facilities and Equipment		
Supervisors		Facility Sites (24)		
RSS		Open Work Orders (3171)		
General				
Lots of RSS Feeds				
General	7	Dashboard Views		

Selecting a view from the left side will display the dashboard view.

Android

Lucity Mobile - Dasht	board OorfLine @MAP MODULES
Drill Test	Open Work Orders and Requests
Supervisors	All Requests entered this month
RSS	Park Work Orders (30)
General	Blogroll CV Looking Into Lucity >>> August's Issue
Lots of RSS Feeds	Here's what we shared this month: ACT 2014 >>> We're quickly inching closer and closer to Lucity's Annual Conference & Training (ACT). We're making final adjustments to the agenda and getting everything together to head to San Diego. We're looking forward to reconnecting with many of you who have attended in the past, and can't []
General	Lucity 2014r2 is Now Available Our second release for 2014, called Lucity 2014r2, is now available for download from our new and improved support center. Our summer release is always feature-packed, and this year is no different. This release includes: Workflow setup modules (Categories, Tasks, Employees, etc) available on the web Access to viewing and editing field properties on the []
	Lucity Mobile for iOS Update A new Lucity Mobile update (Version 1.30) for iOS is now available. Some of the new features available in this version are: GPS positioning enhancements including a heading GPS mode for the map Press and hold the Save button on forms to save and close the form to return to the grid Use a two []
	Lucity's Esri User Conference Wrap-Up Part 2 Last week we shared our COO, Jim Graham's, feedback after returning from the Esri User Conference. Here's something from Luke Savage, our Client Services Consultant, and one of our resident GIS experts: At the 2014 Esri User Conference, Esri showcased another impressive conference. With the changes ahead in 10.3 like ArcGIS Pro, we at Lucity []
	Lucity's Esri User Conference Wrap-Up

iOS

iPad ᅙ	4:30 PM	∦ 10% 🕞	
Dashboards	General	🗋 🙍	
Drill Test	Open Work Orders and Requests	Ċ	
Supervisors	All Requests entered this month	(i) >	
RSS	Park Work Orders (30)	(i) >	
General	Blogroll	Ċ	
Lots of RSS Feeds General	Looking Into Lucity >>> August's Issue Here's what we shared this month: ACT 2014 >>> We're quickly inching closer and close Annual Conference & Training (ACT). We're making final adjustments to the agenda and everything together to head to San Diego. We're looking forward to reconnecting with m Lucity 2014r2 is Now Available Our second release for 2014, called Lucity 2014r2, is now available for download from o improved support center. Our summer release is always feature-packed, and this year is This release includes: Workflow setup modules (Categories, Tasks, Employees, etc) ava Lucity Mobile for iOS Update A new Lucity Mobile update (Version 1.30) for iOS is now available. Some of the new feat in this version are: GPS positioning enhancements including a heading GPS mode for th and hold the Save button on forms to save and close the form to return to the grid Use a Lucity's Esri User Conference Wrap-Up Part 2 Last week we shared our COO, Jim Graham's, feedback after returning from the Esri Us Here's something from Luke Savage, our Client Services Consultant, and one of our resi experts: At the 2014 Esri User Conference Wrap-Up	getting any of you who wur new and s no different. ilable on the attures available te map Press a two [] er Conference. ident GIS icce. With the	

Dashboard views can contain Asset Trees, Data Drills, Quick Lookups, or RSS feeds. Reports, links, maps, and embedded urls are not supported in the mobile dashboards. Quick lookups are available now in Android and are coming this Fall for iOS.

Asset Trees and Data Drills

In the Lucity Mobile Android application, asset trees and data drills are displayed in a tree format.



In iOS tables and phones, asset trees and data drills are show in hierarchical views.

	CH-1-101	4:36 PM	
	CH-I-IOI	Facility Rooms (1) •••	CH-1-101
Facility Doors (2)		Facility Doors Supervisors	
Facility Furnishings (3)		Facility Doors Supervisors	
		Facility Fun Facility Sites (24)	
		1	
		Facility Buildings (1)	
		CHAL	
		Facility Floors (1)	
		CH-1	

To drill into a data drill or asset tree item to see its children on Android, tap the \ddagger . It will expand into a tree format which can be collapsed and expanded by tapping on the Plus or Minus.

To drill into a data drill or asset tree item in iOS, tap the (1). This varies based on iOS version. Some older (6.x) iOS versions use a blue arrow. It is likely that future iOS versions (iOS 8+) may also vary.

Dashboards		
Drill Test	Facilities and Equipment	ڻ
Supervisors	Facility Sites (24)	(i) >
RSS	Open Work Orders (3171)	(i >
Canaral		-

General

iOS only shows one level at a time. The parent level (Facility Rooms) is displayed here:

iPad 🗢	Contraction of the second s
Dashboards	Facility Rooms (1) • • CH-1-10
Drill Test	Facility Doors (2)
Supervisors	Facility Furnishings (3)
RSS	

To navigate back up to the parent, tap on this parent navigation item. In the above screen capture "Facility Rooms (1)".

If you are nested several levels deep in the asset tree in iOS, a "..." will display. Tapping the "..." will display the entire parent hierarchy to make it easier to jump up to grand parent or great grandparent levels:



To launch a view from an asset tree or a data drill, tap the item (anywhere but the + or (1)). This will open a view (grid) to show the relevant records.

Modules Menu

It is a good idea to configure user's dashboards to show the modules they typically will be accessing out in the field. It is a fast way to launch views to the pre-filtered relevant data for that user. To access views that are not in the dashboard or to access view data that is not in a dashboard frame, you can open the modules menu. This is accessed from the menu button on the dashboard.

Android

Lucity Mobile - Dasht	oard			Goo	OFFLINE Q MAP	MODULES
Drill Test	Facilities and Equipme	ent				2
Supervisors	Facility Sites (24)					
iOS						
2:15 PM			∦ 23% 🕞			
	Drill Test					
	Drill Test	Modules	e di			
ill (536)		Log	0 >			
		Help				

The modules menu screen will show all modules which the user has available to them. If the user has Run permissions to the module and belongs to a group that has permissions to the default view for the module, it will be available in the menu.

iPad 🗢	4:38 PM	* 8% 🕞
All Modules	F	Recent Modules
General		
Custom		
Custom Inventories		>
Custom Inspections		>
Env		
Survey Sites		>
Survey Site Inspections		>
Sewer		
Inventory		
Sewer Pipes		>
Sewer Structures		>
Sewer Service Laterals		>
Sewer Service Lateral Permits		>
Sewer Service Connections		>
Sewer Pump Stations		>

The user can also access the recent modules to quickly jump into modules that have recently been opened. On Android this shows recent modules opened from the modules menu or from the dashboard. On iOS this shows the recent modules opened from the modules menu.

Android

General Work Orders Env Sewer Storm Storm Trans Water Electric Free/Park Fleet Plant/Equip Pant/Equip Facility Refuse/Recycle Work	
Sewer Storm Trans Water Electric Tree/Park Fleet Plant/Equip Facility Refuse/Recycle Work OS IPad ◆ 4:38 PM Modules	
Storm Trans Water Electric Tree/Park Fleet Plant/Equip Facility Refuse/Recycle Work OS IPad ◆ 4:38 PM Modules	
Trans Water Electric Tree/Park FRet Plant/Equip Facility Refuse/Recycle Work IPad ◆ 4:38 PM Kodules	
Water Electric Tree/Park Fleet Plant/Equip Facility Refuse/Recycle Work OS IPad © 4:38 PM Modules	
Electric Tree/Park Fleet Plant/Equip Facility Refuse/Recycle Work OS IPad	
Tree/Park Fleet Plant/Equip Facility Refuse/Recycle Work OS IPad	
FReet Plant/Equip Facility Refuse/Recycle Work OS iPad	
Plant/Equip Facility Refuse/Recycle Work OS iPad 중 4:38 PM ↓ Dashboard Modules	
Facility Refuse/Recycle Work OS iPad 중 4:38 PM ♦ Dashboard Modules	
Refuse/Recycle Work OS iPad 중 4:38 PM ✓ Dashboard Modules	
work OS iPad 중 4:38 PM ✓ Dashboard Modules	
IPad र≎ 4:38 PM ≮ Dashboard Modules	
iPad	
Cashboard Modules	
All Modules	
	Recent Mo
Sewer Pipes	

Configuring Dashboards for Mobile Use

Configuring dashboards for use in the field is very similar to configuring them for use within Lucity Web. Configuring dashboards is beyond the scope of this session, but we will cover some topics specific to mobile (particularly offline mobile).

Users will use the same dashboard for Lucity Mobile that they use for Lucity Web, but you can configure individual frames to be accessible in the web or be accessible in mobile (or both). By default new frames are used by both mobile and web.



Be aware that if you are changing a shared tab, you will be changing this setting for all users of that shared tab.

Change the setting to make it hidden or visible on the mobile device.



Dashboards will lay out differently on mobile than they will on the web application. Span Frame, for example, is not relevant on the dashboard. All dashboard frames will appear stacked in a single column for each dashboard view.

Android



iOS

Open Work Orders and Requests	Ċ
All Requests entered this month	(j >
Park Work Orders (30)	(i) >
	Ċ

Looking Into Lucity >>> August's Issue

Here's what we shared this month: ACT 2014 >>> We're quickly inching closer and closer to Lucity's Annual Conference & Training (ACT). We're making final adjustments to the agenda and getting everything together to head to San Diego. We're looking forward to reconnecting with many of you who

Lucity 2014r2 is Now Available

Our second release for 2014, called Lucity 2014r2, is now available for download from our new and improved support center. Our summer release is always feature-packed, and this year is no different. This release includes: Workflow setup modules (Categories, Tasks, Employees, etc) available on the

Lucity Mobile for iOS Update

A new Lucity Mobile update (Version 1.30) for iOS is now available. Some of the new features available in this version are: GPS positioning enhancements including a heading GPS mode for the map Press and hold the Save button on forms to save and close the form to return to the grid Use a two [...]

Lucity's Esri User Conference Wrap-Up Part 2

Last week we shared our COO, Jim Graham's, feedback after returning from the Esri User Conference. Here's something from Luke Savage, our Client Services Consultant, and one of our resident GIS experts: At the 2014 Esri User Conference, Esri showcased another impressive conference. With the

Lucity's Esri User Conference Wrap-Up

Mobile Views

Views in the iOS and Android application contain the same data as views defined in the web application. The Android application shows the data in a single page list view that requires no scrolling:

Work Orders			3	7	24	9	1
k Orders							
Work Order #: 2014-00879 Reason Text: Status: 2 End Date:	Category Text: Call Center Lead Worker Text: Status Text: New Work Order Comment From Request:	Main Task Test: Assigned Crew Test: Status Date: 00/18/2014	Supervis		Matt Pro	oblem	
Wask Order #: 2014-00878 Reason Test: Status: 2 End Date:	Category Text: Sewer Manhole Laad Worker Text: Status Text: New Work Order Comment From Reguest:	Main Task Text Assigned Crew Text Bistos Date: 08/12/2014	Supervis	en Teat: or Teat: et Dafei			
Work Order #: 2014-00877 Reason Text: Batture: 2 End Date:	Category Text: Admin Land Worker Text: Esstus Text: New Work Order Comment From Report:	Main Task Text Assigned Crew Text Status Date: 06/12/2014	Supervis	m Text: or Text: et Date:			
Work Order # 2014-00876 Reason Text: Status: 2 End Date:	Category Text: Sewer Manhole Laad Worker Text: Status Text: New Work Order Comment From Request:	Main Task Text: Assigned Core Text: Status Date: 06/11/2014	Supervis		nfo - W DRANE HU	lastewał inPo	•
Work Order #: 2014-00875	Category Test: Storm Pumps	Main Task Text	Proble				
Reason Text: Blatus: 2	Lead Wolker Text: Status Text: New Work Order	Assigned Crew Text Status Date: 05/11/2014	Supervis Die				
mt. 5095 of 5095						341 D	1

The iOS app is a grid that scrolls up and down/left and right:

iPad ᅙ			4:49 PM	* 7% 🕞
< Mod				🛅 🃍 🍳 📋
	Work Order #	✓ Category Text	*	Main Task Text
•••	2007-00485	Facility Build	ding	
••••	2007-00382	Facilities		
•••	2007-00331	Facilities		
•••	2012-00745	Backflow Pr	reventors	AMR Install / Repair
•••	2007-00987	Potable Ser	vices	Information Research
•••	2007-00461	Water Depa	rtment	Information Research
•••	2007-00007	Potable Ser	vices	Information Research
•••	2006-03318	Potable Ser	vices	Information Research
•••	2006-02681	Potable Ser	vices	Information Research
•••	2006-02552	Potable Ser	vices	Information Research
•••	2006-02525	Water Depa	rtment	Information Research
•••	2006-02463	Potable Ser	vices	Information Research
•••	2006-02433	Potable Ser	vices	Information Research
•••	2006-02440	Potable Ser	vices	Meter Changeout
Total	Records: 17			₫ ₫ 1/2 ▷ ▶

The width of columns in the iOS application can be customized when designing grids. By default the application uses the length of field as calculated from the maximum number of characters allowed. For date time fields it uses a value of 100. For Booleans the default is 75. In the above screen cap you may choose to make the category text and work order field smaller through this configuration to allow for more columns to display at any one time on the grid. This is accessed from the forms>>Grid Manager menu in Lucity Administration tools or by clicking Edit when editing the View from the Forms>>View/Form Manager dialog

Ă			Grid Build	er				x
Grid Name	Storm Conduits							
Grid Type	Storm Conduits	×	Caption		Page Size	10		~
Description	tor							
Available	Columns		Selected Columns		Pro	operties		
	one Text Ith eq eq Units eq Units Tex eq Units Tex ce of Failure ate Time I Cat Cat Cat Cat Text Available m Elevation .CP Date .&M		US Structure DS Structure Conduit Rec # Alt Conduit ID Basin Con. to Sewer Owner Text Location Location Text Surface Text Type Text Pipe Shape Pipe Shape Pipe Shape Text Material Material Text Dia/Height (in)		V (Display Houder MobileWidth Field RelatedField	CN_US_ST	R
Help Mouse ove	r a control to see its	description.						
✓ Offline I	Mobile				Help	<u>M</u> ana	nge Buttons	cel

Changes to these settings require a cache reset.

Both applications use paging and will only show a certain number of records at a time. The number of records shown can be modified in the settings:

Android

nicole Settings for Live	2
APPLICATION	
Page Size	
Enable Full Logging	

iOS

NAME	
Live	
The user specified name that identifies this particular conf	iguration.
HOST	
Host	
The path to the web server.	
PAGE SIZE	
15	
The number of records that show up in a view.	

To page through records, use the paging navigation on the lower right hand side. The iOS client also supports paging using a two-finger swipe.

Android

	Reason Text: Status: 2	Lead Worker Text: Status Text: New Work Order	Assigned Crew Text: Status Date: 08/11/2014	Supervisor Text: Start Date:	
Count:	5095 of 5095			1/340	M
iOS					
•••	2006-02440	Potable Services		Meter Changeout	
Tot	tal Records: 17				I

To refresh the current data and get any new records that may have been added on the server since the view was opened, tap the refresh button.

In Android this is a refresh button on the toolbar

In iOS, the refresh is in the view menu.

< Modu	iles	Work Orders	📑 🌹 ९ 🚊		
	Work Order #	Category Text 🗸	Main Tast Text Refresh		
•••	2014-00879	Call Center	Dashboard		
•••	2014-00878	Sewer Manhole	Log		
•••	2014-00877	Admin	Help		
	0014 00076	Cower Manhala	About		

iOS also supports a pull down refresh.

iPad 중 ✔ Modules			4:31 PM Work Orders		
		1	Release to refresh		
	Work Order #	~	Category Text	~	Main
•••	Work Order # 2014-00879	~	Category Text Call Center	*	Main

To quickly search for information, each view supports a search function. The search searches all visible columns in the view for all records in current context. This context may be records returned from a dashboard data drill or asset tree, or may be from a filter, or may be all records.

The search button is a magnifying glass in both applications



Once the desired search text is entered, tap the Search button or the magnifying glass on the keyboard to initiate the search.

Android

Work Orders		👌 📀 🌹	A high	×	I
Work Orders					
Work Order #: 2014-00879 Reason Text: Status: 2 End Date:	Category Text: Call Center Lead Worker Text: Status Text: New Work Order Comment FromKjmnhbgvftre Request:	Main Task Text: Assigned Crew Text: Status Date: 08/18/20		Problem Text: Matt Problem upervisor Text: Start Date:	
Work Order #: 2014-00878	Category Text: Sewer Manhole	Main Task Text:		Problem Text: Info - Wastewate	
Count: 5095 of 5095	hic	ib		1/340 🕨	
1 2	3 4 5 e r [%] t d f f g	6 7 y u < h & j	7 8 i 0 k	90 [p]≪≤	

|--|

	65	Work Orders	
Q High			Cancel
	Work Order #	Category Text 🗸	Main Task Text
•••	2014-00879	Call Center	
•••	2014-00878	Sewer Manhole	
• • •	2014-00877	Admin	
•••	2014-00876	Sewer Manhole	
• • •	2014-00875	Storm Pumps	
•••	2014-00874	Park	
Q	WEF	T Y U I	0 P 💌
	A S D	F G H J K	L Search

The paging works the same for both filtered and unfiltered data. To page through the filtered records use the record navigation at the lower right hand side of the form.

To clear a search in Android, tap the "X"



Tapping the "X" again will close the search prompt and display the search button again.

To clear the search in iOS, tap the search button again . This will re-open the search prompt:

< N				Work Orders		🛅 🍸		Û
٩	High						0	Cancel
		Work Order #	~	Category Text	~	Main Task Text		T
		2012-00745		Backflow Preventors		AMR Install / Repair		Т

Tap Cancel. This will clear the search and will close the search prompt.

Sorting

To sort data in the grid in Android, tap the 24. Select the desired sort column:

Sort					
Choose	Choose a field:				
Assigned Crew Text	0				
Category Text	0				
End Date	0				
Lead Worker Text	0				
Main Task Text	۲				
Problem Text	0				
Reason Text	0				
Start Date	0				
Status	0				
Status Date	0				
Status Text	0				
Sort Z-A	Sort A-Z				

And tap the Sort Z-A or Sort A-Z button depending on whether you want the data sorted ascending or descending.

To view the current sort column, tap the sort button. It will display the current sort column. Sorts are only supported for only column at a time. Selecting a new sort will clear the existing sort.

Main Task Text		
Main Task Text		
Problem Text		0
Reason Text		\bigcirc
Start Date		\bigcirc
Status		\bigcirc
Status Date		\bigcirc
Status Text		\bigcirc
Clear Sort	Sort Z-A	Sort A-Z

To clear the sort, tap the Clear Sort button.

In iOS, sort data by tapping the column arrow

< Module			Work Orders		📑 🎁 🔍	
	Work Order #	~	Category Text	~	Main Task Text	

and select Sort Ascending or Sort Descending

K Modules		Work Ord	ers		Sort Main Task Text	Q	\square
ork Order #	~	Category Text	~	Main	Sort Ascending	~	Probl
12-00745		Backflow Preventors		AMF	Sort Descending		High
07-00987		Potable Services		Info	mation Research		WTN

When a column is sorted, the column header text appears bolded and the column has a slightly darker color than the rest of the display

	Work Orders		🛅 📍 🍳 📋
~	Category Text	~	Main Task Text
	Facility Building		
	Facilities		
	Facilities		
	Backflow Preventors		AMR Install / Repair
	Potable Services		Information Research
	Water Department		Information Research
	Potable Services		Information Research
	Potable Services		Information Research

Filters

Both the Android and iOS application support loading existing filters created in the web app. To load

an existing filter, tap the filter $\tilde{\gamma}$ button. By default the filters displayed will be the currently logged in user's own filters.

Android

	My Filters
cip Nicole	
DemoACT1 Nicole	
Mobile Sewer Work Nicole	
Nicole as Supervisor Nicole	
Nicole test1 Nicole	
Nicoles Work Loc Test Nicole	
Sunday ACT Nicole	
test route abc Nicole	
Show All	Clear Filter

iOS

Cancel	Filters	Clear Filter
My Filters		All Filters
cip Nicole		
DemoACT1 Nicole		
Mobile Sewer Work		
Nicole as Supervisor		
Nicole test1		
Nicoles Work Loc Test		
Sunday ACT Nicole		
test route abc _{Nicole}		

In Android you can see all filters by tapping the Show All button.

GBA
DemoACT1 Nicole
donnac test GBA
Emergency Response - Open Work Orders GBA
Eugene Open WOs GBA
Fire Department - Hydrant Reflector GBA
Show All

In iOS you can see all filters by tapping the "All filters" tab

	Filters	
My Filters		All Filters
2006 GBA		
4th of July Activities		
A Services GBA		
All Open WOs		

Selecting the filter closes the prompt and loads the filter. Paging and record counts work the same as they do for the find functionality.

The name of the filter selected will appear in the title bar of the view when there is a filter loaded.

Android

Certa DemoACT1			b	æ	Ÿ	₽Į	0,	:
DemoACT1								
Work Order #: 2012-00689 Reason Text: Status: 2 End Date:	Category Text: Environmental Lead Worker Text: Status Text: New Work Order Comment From Request:	Main Task Text: Assigned Crew Text: Status Date: 08/29/2012		Supervis	m Text: or Text: (rt Date:	George But	tler	

iOS

iPad 奈 ✔ Mod	ules		11:19 PM Work Orders DemoACT1		* 3% 📼 1 🎽 🍟 🔍 📩
	Work Order #	~	Category Text	~	Main Task Text
	2012-00689		Environmental		
•••	2012-00687		Potable Mains		
	2012-00686		Hydrants		Hydrant Maintenance
•••	2012-00685		Environmental		

To clear a filter, tap the filter \checkmark button again and tap Clear Filter:

Android

My Filters	
cip Nicole	
DemoACT1 Nicole	
Mobile Sewer Work Nicole	
Nicole as Supervisor Nicole	
Nicole test1 Nicole	
Nicoles Work Loc Test Nicole	
Sunday ACT Nicole	
test route abc Nicole	
Show All	Clear Filter
iOS

< Mod	ules	W	ork Orders DemoAC	F1	1	م 🖞
	Work Order #	Cancel	Filters	Clea	Task Text	
	2012-00689					
-		My Filters				
•••	2012-00687	cip Nicole				
••••	2012-00686	DemoACT1			ant Maintenance	
••••	2012-00685	Mobile Sewer Work				
		Nicole as Supervisor				

Viewing attached documents

Records with documents attached will include a documents button. Tap this button to view any documents attached to a record.

Android

Work Order #: 2014-00878	Category Text: Sewer Manhole	Main Task Text:	Problem Text: Info - Wastewate	j –
Reason Text:	Lead Worker Text:	Assigned Crew Text:	Supervisor Text: SHANE HARPO	
Status: 2	Status Text: New Work Order	Status Date: 08/12/2014	Start Date:	٦
End Date:	Comment From Request:			_

iOS

	••• 🔁 2014-00878 Sewer Manhole
--	--------------------------------

Documents are discussed further later in the session.

Toolkits

Select toolkits are currently available in the mobile app. Some toolkits work on selected records and some toolkits work without a selection. Which toolkits are available will depend on the Lucity server version you have installed. Lucity is adding more toolkits with each server release.



Here is an example:

< Da	ashboa	ard	My Recent Work Orders (23)	🙆 🧰	Cancel	Ê
		Work Order #	Cancel Select Tool			I MARKAR I TOP ALS
		16-206556	Change			
	J	16-203006	Close Work Order Selected Record(s)			
\bullet		16-203005	Change Work Order Status Selected Record(s)			
•••		16-203004	Change Supervisor Selected Record(s)			
••		16-199638	Change Lead Worker Selected Record(s)			
•••		16-194603	Change Crew Selected Record(s)			
•••		16-194595	Cancel Work Order Selected Record(s)			
••		16-192916				
••		16-192915	General			
•••		16-192914	Create Work Order and Associate to it Selected Record			
••		16-191233	Calculate Work Order Cost Per Asset Selected Record(s)			
••		16-189554	Add Main Task as Sub Task Selected Record			
•••		16-189553				
••		16-189552	Doqueot 1623			
Tota	al Reco	ords: 23		K	🖣 1/2 Þ	

DONE



My Recent Work Orders

Work Order #: 16-206556 Status Text: New Work Order Desc 2: Status Date: 09/02/2016 Problem Text: Damaged Catch Basin Cause Text:

Work Order #: 16-203006 Status Text: New Work Order Desc 2: Status Date: 08/31/2016 Problem Text: Cause Text:

cause rext.

Work Order #: 16-203005 Status Text: New Work Order Desc 2: Status Date: 08/31/2016 Problem Text: Vandalism Cause Text:

Work Order #: 16-203004 Status Text: New Work Order Desc 2: Status Date: 08/31/2016 Problem Text: Improvement Cause Text:

Work Order #: 16-199638 Status Text: New Work Order Desc 2: Status Date: 08/29/2016 Problem Text: Cause Text:

Work Order #: 16-194603 Status Text: New Work Order

Count: 23 of 3739

Available Tools

Change

Cancel Work Order

Change Crew

Change Lead Worker

Change Supervisor

Change Work Order Status

Close Work Order

General

Add Main Task as Sub Task

Calculate Work Order Cost Per Asset

Create Work Order and Associate to it

Request

Associate Any Work Request

Associate Work Request that is not complete

1/2

The list can also vary based on which records are selected and the permissions of the currently logged in user. This is the same behavior as the Lucity Web application.

Some toolkits may show a list:

Select Tool	Select Tool Add Multiple Employees					
Employees*						
		Q				
Code	~	Description	~	Department 🗸 🗸		
116		YING CHO		4066		
12		YOLANDA FIRE	S	3952		
129		JASON WRIGH	т	4080		
137		DAVID BEAR		4089		
Start Date				MM/DD/YYYY		
Start Time				HH:MM		
otart fille				1111.10101		
End Time				HH:MM		

Search is supported in these lists and will find all records that contain the text entered. Select a record and click Okay.

For Android, lists are shown in a window which overlays the toolkit window. To pick from the list,

Add Mu	Iltiple Employees
Employees	
Start Date	Start Time
End Time	Normal Hours
Time Cost	
Regular Hours	Overtime Hours
Cancel	Ok

select the button.

The list of items will overlay the toolkit form. Select an item and click finish.

Ado	d Multiple Employ	yees		
0 selected	Employees			
A ⊂				
Clear	Cancel	Finish		
Code: 000001	Description	n: Ryan Sullivan		
Department: 4666				
Code: 119	Description	n: AGGIE WITOWSKI		
Department: 4069				
Code: 148	Description	Description: PETER POTTER		
Department: 4101				
Code: 179	Description	Description: HECTOR NICHOLAS		
Department: 4137				
Code: 268	Description	n: DORIS DALAHAY		
Department: 4248				
Code: 272	Description	Description: BRIAN ADKINS		
Department: 4252				
Code: 54	Description	n: Patrick Parker		
Department: 4000				
Code: DEP	Description	n: Don Pinkston		
Department: 4664				
Code: GBA	Description	n: George Butler		
Department: 4663				
Code: NES	Description	n" Nicolo Sohmidt		
Cancel		Ok		

This will select the item(s) and take you back to the toolkit form to finish entering data.

Add M	ultiple Employees
Employees DEP	
Start Date 09/09/2015	Start Time
End Time	Normal Hours
Time Cost	=
Regular Hours	Overtime Hours
Cancel	Ok

Required toolkit fields are marked with an *. These values must be populated before you will be allowed to execute the tool.

Selection Mode

There are several tools and functions that are only available or may function differently when records are selected in the grid. In both Android and iOS, records are selected by pressing and holding the record (or one of the records) you are interested in. When you press and hold a record for a moment, you will notice the toolbar changing and the record color changes. In Android it changes to orange, in iOS it changes to a light blue or grey color.

Android

Saving screenshot				0	٦	×
Nork Orders						
End Date:	Comment From Request:					
Work Order #: 2014-00877 Reason Text: Status: 2 End Date:	Category Text: Admin Lead Worker Text: Status Text: New Work Order Comment From Request:	Main Task Text: Assigned Crew Text: Status Date: 08/12/2014	Problem Text: Supervisor Text: Start Date:			
Work Order #: 2014-00876	Category Text: Sewer Manhole	Main Task Text:	Problem Text: Ir	lfo - Was	tewate	1
OS						

< Module	S	Work Orders	🗐 🔇 📘 Cancel 📋
	Work Order #	Category Text 🗸	Main Task Text
•••	2014-00879	Call Center	
••• 📒	2014-00878	Sewer Manhole	
•••	2014-00877	Admin	
•••	2014-00876	Sewer Manhole	

To leave selection mode, tap the Done in Android or the Cancel in iOS in the title bar of the application.

Android

			Q 🗐 📘
Work Orders			
Work Orders End Date: Comment From Request: iOS IPad © 7:34 AM			
W L C L # 2014 00977	o Admin		
iOS			
iPad ᅙ		7:34 AM	* 100% 🚥
✓ Modules	Wo	rk Orders	📑 🔞 🕞 Cancel 📋
Work Order #	✓ Category Text	~	Main ask Text

Once one record is selected and the application is in selection mode, additional records can be selected by tapping the record. It is not necessary to press and hold to select additional items.

Android

Orders					
End Date:	Comment From Request:				
Work Order #: 2014-00877	Category Text: Admin	Main Task Text:	Problem Text:		
Reason Text:	Lead Worker Text:	Assigned Crew Text:	Supervisor Text:		
Status: 2	Status Text: New Work Order	Status Date: 08/12/2014	Start Date:		
End Date:	Comment From Request:				
Work Order #: 2014-00876	Category Text: Sewer Manhole	Main Task Text:	Problem Text: Info -	Wastewa	te
Reason Text:	Lead Worker Text:	Assigned Crew Text:	Supervisor Text: SHANE	HARPO	
Status: 2	Status Text: New Work Order	Status Date: 08/11/2014	Start Date:		
End Date:	Comment From Request:				
Work Order #: 2014-00875	Category Text: Storm Pumps	Main Task Text:	Problem Text: UTILI	TY TIONS	
Reason Text:	Lead Worker Text:	Assigned Crew Text:	Supervisor Text:		
Status: 2	Status Text: New Work Order	Status Date: 08/11/2014	Start Date:		
End Date:	Comment From Request:				
Work Order #: 2014-00874	Category Text: Park	Main Task Text:	Problem Text:		
Reason Text:	Lead Worker Text:	Assigned Crew Text:	Supervisor Text:		

iOS

< Modu	les	Work Orders	📑 馢 📘 Cancel 📋
	Work Order #	Category Text 🗸	Main Task Text
•••	2014-00879	Call Center	
••• 🞩	2014-00878	Sewer Manhole	
•••	2014-00877	Admin	
•••	2014-00876	Sewer Manhole	
•••	2014-00875	Storm Pumps	
•••	2014-00874	Park	
•••	2014-00873	Park	Matt Task

Note: Not all tools work on multiple selected items. Tools which only support a single selected item will prompt the user that the tool cannot be used on multiple items.

Create Work Order

An additional tool available on requests and some inventory and inspection modules is Create Work

Order. This tool is available when one or more records are selected.



Tapping on the work order button generates the work order and opens a work order view to display the newly created work order

To create a work order from multiple requests, select all of the desired requests in the list (you can only choose requests from a single page) and tap the Create Work Order button. This will create one work order and associate all requests to that work order.

Work Requests			
Priority: Loc Street Name: Request to Work Order:	Priority Text: Loc Street Type: No of Requests: 1	Loc Address: Supervisor:	Loc Street Direction: Supervisor Text:
Request #: 2014-00245 Category: 70000 Priority: Loc Street Name: Request to Work Order:	Status: 2 Category Text: Fleet Maintenance Priority Text: Loc Street Type: No of Requests: 0	Status Text: Assigned to WO Problem: Loc Address: Supervisor:	Status Date: 08/21/2014 Problem Text: Loc Street Direction: Supervisor Text:
Request #: 2014-00244 Category: 60000 Priority: 5 Loc Street Name: 87 HWY Request to Work Order:	Status: 1 Category Text: Equipment Priority Text: To Fit Schedule Loc Street Type: HWY No of Requests: 1	Status Text: New Request Problem: VMFUEL003 Loc Address: 45 Supervisor: 168	Status Date: 07/28/2014 Problem Text: ANNUAL PERMITING Loc Street Direction: Supervisor Text: ROBERT ROTO
Request #: 2014-00243 Category: 02000 Priority: Loc Street Name: E DEVON CT Request to Work Order:	Status: 1 Category Text: Call Center Priority Text: Loc Street Type: CT No of Requests: 0	Status Text: New Request Problem: Loc Address: 2834 Supervisor:	Status Date: 07/24/2014 Problem Text: Loc Street Direction: E Supervisor Text:
Request #: 2014-00242 Category: Priority: Loc Street Name: Request to Work Order: Try again test	Status: 1 Category Text: Priority Text: Loc Street Type: No of Requests: 0	Status Text: New Request Problem: Loc Address: Supervisor:	Status Date: 07/07/2014 Problem Text: Loc Street Direction: Supervisor Text:

To create a work order from multiple inventory items or inspections, select all of the items and tap Create Work Order. This will create a work order and include all of the selected assets on the work order.

DONE			🔞 🗐 🖪 🥥 🤅
pections			
Hydrant Rec #: 100	Hydrant Number: 1956	Inspection Date: 06/18/2007	Inspected By: Steven Glover
Inspection By:	Inspection By Text:	Overall Cond: 2	Overall Cond Text: Good
Operating Cond: 2	Operating Cond Text: Good	Damage Type: 0	Damage Type Text: N/A
Paint Condition: 2	Paint Condition Text: Good	Drain Condition: 2	Drain Condition Text: Good
Oper Nut Cond: 2	Oper Nut Cond Text: Good	Cap Chain Cond: 2	Cap Chain Cond Text: Good
Hydrant Rec #: 98	Hydrant Number: 1954	Inspection Date: 04/01/2007	Inspected By: Randy Waterhouse
Inspection By:	Inspection By Text:	Overall Cond: 2	Overall Cond Text: Good
Operating Cond: 3	Operating Cond Text: Fair	Damage Type: 0	Damage Type Text: N/A
Paint Condition: 3	Paint Condition Text: Fair	Drain Condition: 3	Drain Condition Text: Fair
Oper Nut Cond: 2	Oper Nut Cond Text: Good	Cap Chain Cond: 3	Cap Chain Cond Text: Fair
Hydrant Rec #: 96	Hydrant Number: 1952	Inspection Date: 08/30/2007	Inspected By: Nick Oliver
Inspection By:	Inspection By Text:	Overall Cond: 2	Overall Cond Text: Good
Operating Cond: 3	Operating Cond Text: Fair	Damage Type: 0	Damage Type Text: N/A
Paint Condition: 2	Paint Condition Text: Good	Drain Condition: 2	Drain Condition Text: Good
Oper Nut Cond: 1	Oper Nut Cond Text: Excellent	Cap Chain Cond: 2	Cap Chain Cond Text: Good
Hydrant Rec #: 95	Hydrant Number: 1951	Inspection Date: 07/15/2007	Inspected By: David Tanner
Inspection By:	Inspection By Text:	Overall Cond: 2	Overall Cond Text: Good
Operating Cond: 2	Operating Cond Text: Good	Damage Type: 2	Damage Type Text: Vandalism

Create Request

Creating a request can be done from inventory and inspection modules. Creating a request only works with a single selected item.

The iOS application works identically to the Android application for creating work orders. Select one or more requests or inventory items or inspections and tap the Work Order button:

When the work order is created, a work order view is opened showing the created work order.

Creating Requests in iOS also behaves the same as the Android application. Select the record you want to create a request for and tap the Create Request button. This tool only works on one selected record.

When the request is created a view will be opened displaying the created request.

Deleting records on the tablet

Deleting records on the iOS and Android tables can be done from selection mode as well. Historically more than one record could be deleted at a time. However, the latest versions of the tablet have restricted it to single record deletes. Press and hold a record to enter selection mode (if not already in selection mode)

Tap the delete button. 🗖

Android

Are you sure you want to delete these records?					
No	Yes				
Poqueet					

iOS



Navigating child records

In Android, child records are accessed by tapping on the row to open the form. The available child views appear across the top of the form with the child view record counts.

2014-00878						•	Õ	Q	1
Work Orders > 2014-0	0878								
Locations (1) Assets (1) WO Checklist (0)	Work Order Eve	<u>ents (0)</u>	<u> Tasks (0)</u>	Work Order Tracking (3)	Comments (2)			
Work Order #	*Category	ſ			🗹 Document Availa	ible			
2014-00878	21100	Sewer M	anhole	Q					
Status	Problem							•	
2 - New Work Order	CSINF	OWW In	nfo - Was	tewate		Q			
Status Date Statu	s Time Main Tas	ĸ							
08/12/2014 2:3	0 PM				Q				

In iOS, child records are accessed with the •••• which will display a list of available child views.

	Work Orders Child Views	
Locations (1)		>
Tasks (3)		>
Assets		>
Checklist		>
Events		>
Tracking (2)		>
Resulting Tasks		>
PM/Work Template	s	>

In older versions of the iOS tablet application, if you selected a child view from the childview list with no rows, it would immediately launch a data entry form. The current version of the application does not do this because it prevented access to the toolkit button for empty grids which we felt was more important than jumping into the data entry screen.

Child views behave very similar to root level views but do not support filter and in some cases may not support adding or deleting depending on the child and the user's permissions.

This is the task child grid of work orders:

Android

Tasks			•	2	₽	0,	
<u>Work Orders</u> > <u>2014-00878</u> > Tasks							
Seq No: 1	Task Text: Info Calls Vendors	Start Date: 08/20/2014					
End Date: 08/20/2014 Task Supervisor Text: Don Pinkston	UOM: Each	# of Units: 0	Actual Labor H	lours: 0			

iOS

Work Orders Tasks						📑 < 📋	
	Seq No	~	Task	~	Task Text	~	Start Date
•••	1		CSINFO10		Info Calls Vendors		8/20/2014

Child views of tasks can be accessed the same way. In Android this is done by selecting the record to open the form and selecting the desired child view.

CSINFO10 Info Calls Vendors				5	Ô	J	:
Work Orders > 2014-00878 > Tasks > CSINF010 Ir	nfo Calls '	Vendors					
Employees (1) Equipment (0) Materials (0) Fluids (0)	Contract	ors (0)					
*Task		🗹 Use Actual Res C	ost 🗹 Use Est Res	Cost			
CSINF010 Info Calls Vendors	Q						
Task Crew		Act Labor Hours	Est Labor Hours	Labor Hour Diff			
· ·	Q	0	0	0			
Task Supervisor							

In iOS, child views are accessed with the button inline in the row.

Open in a New View

Both applications support opening root level items in a new view. For example, if you want to open up and view TV inspection observations from the Pipe Inventory module, you can go to the TV inspection you are interested in and open it in a new view. The new view will allow you to view the TV observations.

In iOS, you can open in a new view by selecting the "..." button on a root level view item. This will prompt you for whether you want to open the item in a new view:

iPad 중				1:54 PM	
< Pipe Ir				TV Inspections	
	Structure	~	DS Structure	~	Alt
🗹	113495		113497		100
5	113495		113497		100

New	View				
Would you like to open TV Inspections in a new view to see more details?					
No	Yes				

In Android, select the record you are interested in seeing in a new view and select the Open in a New View button:

V DONE			🛶 🗐 🔕 🗐 📘	2
<u>pe Inventory > 1000</u> > TV Ins	spections			
US Structure: 113495	DS Structure: 113497	Alt Pipe ID: 1000	Flow Basin: S15-	
Pipe Rec #: 15587	TV Rec #: 88	Most Recent Inspect: true	Date Televised: 08/10/2011	
Time Televised:	TV Direction: 2	TV Direction Text: Downstream to Upstream	Inspection Crew:	
Inspected By:	Inspected By Text:	Weather:	Weather Text:	
Surface Condition:	Surface Cond Text:	Dyed Water:	Dyed Water Text:	
US Structure: 113495	DS Structure: 113497	Alt Pipe ID: 1000	Flow Basin: S15-	
Pipe Rec #: 15587	TV Rec #: 6	Most Recent Inspect: false	Date Televised: 04/09/2005	
Time Televised: 3:02 PM	TV Direction: 1	TV Direction Text: Upstream to Downstream	Inspection Crew: John Smith	•
Inspected By:	Inspected By Text:	Weather: 2	Weather Text: Rainy	
Surface Condition: 1	Surface Cond Text: Trees	Dyed Water: 2	Dyed Water Text: Yes	

Configuring Views for mobile

Views configured for the Lucity Web application will automatically be used by the tablet application. The system will automatically use the same views configured for the users in the mobile application that are used for the user in the web application.

Refer to documentation from a Lucity Administration session for how to customize views and configure views for users.

In system settings you can configure the maximum number of columns shown in mobile for a view.

ל⊱ lucity. תווייים	👤 Admin Portal 🛞 🗮 Work Orders 🔇 🕇	🔅 🗒 🔕 🔔	Nicole Schmidt
Home + Reports - Users And Licenses	Mobile	Setting Value	Setting Category Q
Security Tokens Client Licenses	Log device latitude and longitude Max Columns Returned	20	Mobile Mobile
User License Manager — Settings	Maximum number or days to store device location nistory Maximum records to return per request for mobile	30 100	Mobile Mobile
System Settings Update the offline Android cache nightly Update the offline iOS cache nightly		TRUE	Mobile Mobile
	Url for the Lucity Mobile Server Virtual Directory	https://demo.lucity.net/LucityMobileServer	Mobile

Views with more than 20 or 30 columns do not work well in the mobile application. They take too much display memory to render and take up too much space. This limit allows views to be defined for desktop usage with many columns, but still work well in mobile by only showing the first X columns.

How user permissions affect views

The user used for this training has full permissions to all modules. Users without delete permissions will not have a delete button. Users without permissions to add and edit documents may also see slightly altered screens in the documents dialogs.

Documents

Working with Documents in Views

Documents can be viewed or added while in selection mode. Select a record and tap the Documents button in the toolbar. This will open up a dialog displaying all existing documents attached to the record.

Android

Documents				
08/19/14 03:04:11 PM - 08/19/2014				
iôi				
Close				

iOS

Close	Documents	Edit
08/19/14 03:04:11 PM		2014-08-19 12:00:00 AM
Ō		□a

Documents and web links can be opened by tapping on the item in the document list.

Android supports adding images, videos, or web url attachments. The iOS application supports adding images and videos. Both mobile applications support taking a new picture/video or selecting an existing image/video from the gallery.

In Android, to attach an image or video from the gallery, tap the gallery button on the documents dialog:



Depending on what apps are installed on the device, you may get prompted for which application to use for the gallery. In the case of this device, there are 2 possible image sources (gallery and photos). Gallery is available on every android device that has a camera installed. Many installations include the photos app as well and depending on what other apps are installed, there may be even more choices in this dialog:

Complete action using		
Gallery	Photos	
Always	Just once	

Once you select a photo from the gallery or photos, you will be prompted for a description.

4	Enter Description		
Please enter a description for this document. (Optional)			
ai			
Cancel	Ok		

If you do not enter a description, the upload will have a description of the current date and time.

Documents			
08/20/14 12:31:24 PM - 08/20/201	4		
evie and jack - 08/20/2014			
henry - 08/20/2014			
08/19/14 03:04:11 PM - 08/19/2014			
			
Close			

The document is uploaded to the server and is now available to all Lucity systems (web, mobile, desktop).

To take a new image to attach to the record, tap the button. This will open the camera. Once

the picture is taken, you will be prompted whether to discard or save the image. Tapping save will

prompt for the optional description.



Tap Ok on the description to upload it to the server. Images captured directly are not saved to the

device; they are uploaded directly to the server. To attach a video, tap the \Box video button which will open the video recorder.



Tap the video button to record and when done, tap the stop button:



If you are satisfied with the video, tap the checkmark:



The system will prompt for an optional description.

Editing and Deleting Documents

To edit or delete a document, press and hold the document in the document list. This will prompt:

Documents				
What would you like to do with this document?				
Cancel	Delete	Edit		

Editing allows you to edit the document description.

In Android you can also attach web urls to documents. Tap the 🗳 button to open a dialog to add a url to a document.

Add Web Page				
Please enter a description and web address for this document.				
Description:				
1				
Web Address:				
Cancel	Ok			

Documents can also be viewed and attached from forms as well. This is covered later in this session. In iOS, to attach an existing image or movie, tap on the movie or camera button.



The application will prompt for whether you want to take new media or use existing from the Photo Library or Video Library.



If there are multiple galleries defined, you will choose the gallery, and then choose the photo



Selecting the photo will display it and prompt for description (the photo may appear distorted in the preview; it is not uploaded like this).



The description is optional. If a description is not entered, the system will automatically add a description that shows the current date and time of the upload.



Tap Save to upload the photo.

To attach a new photo or video, tap the Photo or the Video button and select "Take Video" or "Take Photo"

When the photo or the video has been taken, the display will allow you to preview the photo/video, retake the photo or video, or use the photo or video. These options are at the bottom of the screen.



Optionally enter a description and tap Save to upload the photo or video to the server. To edit or delete attachments, tap the Edit button

er #	Close	Documents	Edit	ask Text
879	sidewalk crack	2014-08-20) 12:00: 0 AM	
878	08/20/14 12:31:24 PM	2014-08-20) 12 0 :00 AM	

This will change the mode of the documents dialog into edit mode.

Close Do	cuments Done
08/20/14 01:59:10 PM	2014-08-20 12:00:00 AM (i) >
😑 San Juan Creek Trail	2014-08-20 12:00:00 AM (i) >
sidewalk crack	2014-08-20 12:00:00 AM (i) >
08/20/14 12:31:24 PM	2014-08-20 12:00:00 AM (i) >
evie and jack	2014-08-20 12:00:00 AM (i) >
e henry	2014-08-20 12:00:00 AM (i) >

To delete a photo or video, tap the red minus. Then tap delete. This removes the photo from the record and deletes the source document from the server.

e henry	2014-08-20 12:00:00 AM (i) >		
9/14 03:04:11 PM	2014-08-19 12:00:00AM	Delete	

It is also possible to delete a document by swiping a document item from right to left. This will slide the text to the left and will display a delete button:

Close	Documents			
sidewalk cracks	2014-08-2	0 12:00:00 AM		
01:59:10 PM	2014-08-20 12:00:00	AM Delete		
San Juan Creek Trail	2014-08-2	0 12:00:00 AM		
To edit a description on a document tap the (i)				
Cocuments				
DESCRIPTION				
sidewalk cracks				
	0.11/5			
	SAVE			

Change the description and tap save.

When done editing in the documents dialog, tap the "Done" button which will return to standard view mode on the list of available documents. You can then close the dialog by tapping "Close".

Forms Introduction

Views and child views and grandchild views (etc) may each have attached forms. These forms are accessible in the tablet application by tapping on a record in a view. Tapping on a record will open the form in both iOS and Android to allow for editing and viewing information on the form. Additionally, new records can be added in the tablet with the Add button which opens up a blank form (prepopulated with defaults).

Prior to going into detail on forms, it is helpful to review methods of navigating in the tablet application between views, forms, the dashboard, etc.

Navigation

Navigation in Android

In Android, navigation options are available in the menus, as well as in cookie trails, and by using the Android system back button (on the device or on the display).

From the dashboard, there are buttons to get to GIS, a menu option to open the modules menu, and many links within the dashboard frames themselves to open up an alternate area in the Lucity Mobile application.

Once in a view from the dashboard frame link, navigate back to the dashboard by tapping the Lucity dashboard navigation button on the upper left. This will take the user back to the dashboard to the frame the user was on when launching the view. Alternately the system back button will also return the application to the dashboard. The location of the system back button can vary slightly between devices.

Work Order #: 2013-00003	Category Text: Solid Waste	Main Task Text: Uncontained	Problem Text:
Reason Text:	Lead Worker Text:	Collections Assigned Crew Text:	Supervisor Text: EUGENE KISS
Status: 2 End Date: 01/17/2014	Status Text: New Work Order Comment From Request:	Status Date: 01/08/2013	Start Date: 01/01/2012
Work Order #: 2013-00001	Category Text: Solid Waste	Main Task Text: Uncontained Collections	Problem Text: BULK - Inspection
Reason Text:	Lead Worker Text:	Assigned Crew Text:	Supervisor Text: EUGENE KISS
Status: 2	Status Text: New Work Order	Status Date: 01/07/2013	Start Date: 01/07/2013
End Date:	Comment From Request:		
Work Order #: 2012-00798	Category Text: Sewer Pipe	Main Task Text: Sewer Locating Requests	Problem Text: Sewer Locating Requests
Reason Text:	Lead Worker Text:	Assigned Crew Text:	Supervisor Text: SHIELA KAMDON
Status: 2	Status Text: New Work Order	Status Date: 11/06/2012	Start Date: 11/08/2012
End Date:	Comment From Request:		
Work Order #: 2012-00652	Category Text: Fleet Maintenance	Main Task Text:	Problem Text:
Reason Text:	Lead Worker Text:	Assigned Crew Text:	Supervisor Text: PHILLIP ALEXANDER
Status: 2	Status Text: New Work Order	Status Date: 06/20/20 2	Start Date: 04/23/2007
End Date:	Comment From Request:		
End Date:			

Work Order #: 2014-00879 Reason Text: Status: 2 End Date:	Category Text: Call Center Lead Worker Text: Status Text: New Work Order Comment FromKjmnhbgvftre Request:	Main Task Text: Assigned Crew Text: Status Date: 08/18/2014	Problem Text: Matt Problem Supervisor Text: Start Date:
Work Order #: 2014-00878 Reason Text: Status: 2 End Date: 08/20/2014	Category Text: Sewer Manhole Lead Worker Text: Status Text: New Work Order Comment From Request:	Main Task Text: Assigned Crew Text: Status Date: 08/12/2014	Problem Text: Info - Wastewate Supervisor Text: SHANE HARPO Start Date: 08/20/2014
Work Order #: 2014-00877 Reason Text: Status: 2 End Date:	Category Text: Admin Lead Worker Text: Status Text: New Work Order Comment From Request:	Main Task Text: Assigned Crew Text: Status Date: 08/12/2014	Problem Text: Supervisor Text: Start Date:
Work Order #: 2014-00876 Reason Text: Status: 2 End Date:	Category Text: Sewer Manhole Lead Worker Text: Status Text: New Work Order Comment From Request:	Main Task Text: Assigned Crew Text: Status Date: 08/11/2014	Problem Text: Info - Wastewate Supervisor Text: SHANE HARPO Start Date:
Work Order #: 2014-00875	Category Text: Storm Pumps	Main Task Text:	Problem Text: UTILITY LOCATIONS
Reason Text: Status: 2	Lead Worker Text: Status Text: New Work Order	Assigned Crew Text: Status Date: 08/11/2014	Supervisor Text: Start Date:

Views opened from the modules menu also support navigating back to the dashboard in the same way.

In most cases, the system back button will also close and cancel any open prompts like the documents list, or the filter list and is an alternative to tapping cancel or close.

When adding a new record from a view, the system will display a defaulted empty form. From the add form, the upper left navigation button will cancel the add and take the user back to the dashboard. The system back button will cancel the add and return to the view. Both of these will prompt if there are unsaved changes.

IK Olders - F	dd - Work Ord					
Work Order #		*Category		0	Document Available	e
Status		*Problem		Q		
2 - New Work	Order				C	2
Status Date	Status Time	Main Task				
08/20/2014	6:25 PM				Q	
Comment From Reg	weat					
Enter your cor						
Enter your cor						
Enter your cor			Q,			
Enter your cor				*Assigned Date	Assigned Time	
Enter your con Cause			Q,	*Assigned Date	Assigned Time	Returns to the view
			Q,	*Assigned Date	Assigned Time	Returns to the view
Enter your con Cause				*Assigned Date	Assigned Time	Returns to the view

Additionally, a cookie trail is provided on forms to facilitate faster or more direct navigation. The case of a new work order it provides a link to go back to the work order view.

Add - Work Orders			1
<u>Work Orders</u> > Add - Wor	k Orders		
Work Order #	*Category	Document Available	
Status	*Problem		
2 - New Work Order			

In more nested or complex navigation scenarios, it provides access all the way up the object tree for rapid access to parent or grandparent data. From this employee record, links are provided to look at the employees child view, the CSINFO10 task form, the work order task view, the work order form, or the work orders view.

	5		Ô	J	÷
<u>Work Orders</u> > <u>2014-00878</u> > <u>Tasks</u> > <u>CSINFO10 Info Calls Vendors</u> > <u>Employees</u> > YOLAND/	A FIRESTONI	Emplo	oyee		
*Resource Drocaesad by Einanciale					

In the above highly nested object, the Lucity navigation button in the upper left corner still returns the application to the dashboard.

Navigation in iOS

The navigation in iOS is similar, but there is no system back button. Additionally, there is not a go to dashboard Lucity icon in the upper left hand corner. However, most screens in the iOS application provide a menu option to allow a user to easily jump back to the dashboard.

From the dashboard, views can be launched from dashboard items such as asset trees or data drills. When launched from an asset tree or data drill, the upper left navigation returns to the dashboard.

	4:41 PM					
pard	2007-01209 (1) - Data Drill (536)					
Work Order #	Category Text	 Main Task Te 	ext			
2007-01209	Fleet Maintenance					
		Main Task Te	əxt			

Additionally, all views have a "Dashboard" option in the menu.

* 87% □) Q	7	4:42 PM hboard 2007-01209 (1) - Data Drill (536)				iPad 奈 ✔ Dashbo
	Main Task Text Refresh	~	Category Text	~	Work Order #	
d	Dashboard		Fleet Maintenance		2007-01209	•••
	Log					
	Help					
	About					
	Settings					
	Settings					

When a view is opened from the modules menu, the upper left navigation returns to the modules menu. Then from the modules menu, the upper left navigation returns to the dashboard

iPad ᅙ	_		4:51 PM				∦ 86% 💷 •
< Module	es	Work Orders				7	
	Work Order #	Category Text		~	Main Task Text		
••••	2014-00879	Call Center					
5	2014-00878	Sewer Manh	nole				
• • •	2014-00877	Admin					
iPad 🗢			4:51 PM				∦ 86% 💶)
C Dashboard Modules							
	All Modules			Recent	Modules		
Work Or	ders						>

When	in a	form.	the upper	left	navigation	returns	to	the	parent	view.

Document Available
Document Available
(\mathbf{i})
(i)

Additionally, in iOS you can page through individual records while on a form. Instead of navigating back to the parent view to select a new record, you can use a two finger swipe from right to left to move forward records (and a two finger swipe from right to left to move back).

All forms also include the Dashboard link in the menu.

iPad 🗢	4:46 PM		∦ 87% 💷 े
	Assets - Sewer Structure 126856		···· 🖶 🗐 🏨
Asset Rec # *		WO Cost	Save And Close
126856 Desc 1	(i)	0.0	Dashboard
Standard			Log
Desc 2 15942 E WARNER RD			Help

When in a child view, the navigation button returns to whatever the previous screen was. If the child view was opened from a parent view it will open the parent view.

iPad 🦻				4:46 PM	* 87% 💷)
< w	/ork O	orders		Assets	📘 Q 📋
		Sequence	~	System ID 1	~
•••		1		126856	

If the child view was opened from a parent form, it will open the parent form.

	4:46 PM	* 87% 💴
Orders - 2014-00878	Assets	🔁 Q 📋
Sequence 💙	System ID 1	~
1	126856	
		Orders - 2014-00878 Assets Sequence ✓

Forms in Detail

In the mobile applications forms are only accessed from views. There is no "menu" in mobile where forms can be launched directly.

Adding Records

Views that support "Add" will include a button on the view. This will launch a form with any default values already populated. For example, on work orders the status will be defaulted to 2 New Work Order. Any system defaults that are configured or form level defaults will also be populated on the form. Read only fields are labeled in green. Required fields are labeled in orange.

o <mark>rk Orders</mark> > Add - Work Ord	ers			
Nork Order #	*Category	Q	Document Available	
Status	*Problem			
2 - New Work Order				
Status Date Status Time 08/20/2014 10:08 PN	Main Task		Q	
comment From Request				
Enter your comment here				
Cause				
ause		Q,		
Cause		Q, *Assigned Date	Assigned Time	

In Android, most fields support manually typing into the field if desired. Tap into the field area. This will bring up a keyboard to start typing.



Fields which only support picking values from a picklist (like simple code/type fields) will pop up a picklist when the field is tapped.

Prior	ity		
Q,	Sort By	Code	🔿 Туре
1 - Immediate Priority			
2 - Same Day Priority			
3 - Next Day Priority			
4 - Same Week Priority			
5 - To Fit Schedule			
6 - Cache test			

Date fields pull up a calendar to pick a date. Time fields pull up a time picker.

ed, Au	g 20, 20)14								
					Au	igus	st 20	14		
				S	М	т	w	т	F	s
Jul	19	2013	31	27	28	29	30	31	1	2
	20	2014	32	3	4	5	6	7	8	9
Nug	20	2014	33	10	11	12	13	14	15	16
ер	21	2015	34	17	18	19	20	21	22	23
			35	24	25	26	27	28	29	30
			36	31	1	2	3	4	5	6
	Cancel						Set			
	_	Start Da	te		0	tart	Time			

Some fields support picking values from a list and manually typing data into the field. These fields

Q

have a search button \bigcirc .

*Problem

Tap on this search button to pick a value from a list.

Proble	em		
Q	Sort By	Code	🔘 Туре
Show All			
FACP000 - Routine Mainte	enance		
FACP200 - Ceiling			
FACP220 - Door / Lock			
FACP260 - Floor			
FACP340 - Key Request			
FACP420 - Moving & Store	age		
FACP580 - Signage			
FACP720 - Wall			
FACP740 - Window			

Currently only Android supports Show All. This Fall (2016) we will be adding support for this feature to iOS.

Some picklist fields have multiple fields, such as the work order asset child asset rec # picklist:

		Asset Rec #	
<mark>4</mark> ↓ へ			1/14 🕨 🕨
	ID: 608 VIN: 1GCEC14W21Z259491	NUMBER: BGB0532	DESCRIPTION: 2001 CHEVROLET 1500
	ID: 609 VIN: 1GCEC14V92Z217361	NUMBER: BGB0600	DESCRIPTION: 2002 CHEVROLET 1500
	ID: 610 VIN: 1GCEC14W3WZ194996	NUMBER: BGS0382	DESCRIPTION: 1998 CHEVROLET 1500
	ID: 611 VIN: 1GCEC14W7WZ194905	NUMBER: BGS0383	DESCRIPTION: 1998 CHEVROLET 1500

ID: 612 NUMBER: BGS0385 DESCRIPTION: 1998 CHEVROLET 1500 Another example of a picklist with multiple fields is the hydrant lookup on a hydrant inspection form. (Sometimes these are referred to as value lookups in Lucity)

		Hydrant Number	
₽₽	Q,		1/5 🕨 🕨
	Hydrant Number: 1203	Type: Dry-Barrel	Status: Fair
	Inlet Size: 6	Hyd Valve Size: 26.64	Building No: 2643
	Str Post Bldg No:	Direction: S	Street Name: ASH
	Str Type: ST	Suffix:	Hydrant Rec #: 30
	Hydrant Number: 1204	Type: Dry-Barrel	Status: Good
	Inlet Size: 6	Hyd Valve Size: 3	Building No: 2754
	Str Post Bldg No:	Direction: S	Street Name: BALBOA
	Str Type: DR	Suffix:	Hydrant Rec #: 31
	Hydrant Number: 1205	Type: Dry-Barrel	Status: Good
	Inlet Size: 6	Hyd Valve Size: 2.64	Building No: 2634

Searching for data in these picklists can make it easier to find the record you are looking for.



To search, tap the search button and type a full or partial search term.

	Hydrant Number
<mark>₽↓ bal</mark> ×	
Hydrant Number: 1204	Type: Dry-Barrel
Inlet Size: 6	Hyd Valve Size: 3
Str Post Bldg No:	Direction: S
Str Type: DR	Suffix:
	T IN N I

The search will look for any columns which include that text. Searches in the work order asset picklist work on limited columns (they do not work on description). Searches in other picklists will search all visible fields that contain the text such as the hydrant picklist shown above.

Street list is another large picklist where searching may be helpful to quickly find the desired street. For example, the Street Name field in the Work Order Location child

Street Name	
she	×
SHEFFIELD AVE	
E SHEFFIELD CT	
E SHEFFIELD RD	
E SHERRI CT	
E SHERRI DR	

The application gets intermittent updates from the server when users tap in a new field or fill out values in certain fields. For example, when the problem is selected, main task will be filled in. This is done with continual communication with the server, but none of the edits made on the tablet are persisted until the Save button is tapped.

Tap the Save button to save changes. This will save the changes to the database and will update the form to show available child items which can be added



Additional records can be added directly from the form if multiple records need to be created. This is faster than navigating back to the view to add a new record.



Adding Child Records

To add a child record, tap on the desired child in the cookie trail:

2014-00881			•		Ô	Q	:
<u>Work Orders</u> > 2014-008	81						
Locations (0) Assets (0)	NO Checklist (0) Work Order Ever	ts (0) Tasks (0) Work Order Tracking (1	<u>) Comr</u>	<u>ments (0</u>)		
Work Order #	*Category	Document Ava	ilable				
2014-00881	01000 Admin	Q					
Status	*Problem						
2 - New Work Order	BSRES Blu	e Stake Inquiry - Residential	Q				
Status Date Status Tim	ne Main Task						

This will open a view with 0 or more records. If there are 0 records, it will look like this:



Records can be added by tapping on the bin the middle of the form or the orbit toolbar:

Tools available on forms

Once a record is saved, additional tools are available on a form:



Documents can be viewed and edited (the workflow for the forms document control and views document control is the same, see details earlier in this guide).

The document tool works the same, but an additional button for capturing a new image is available to allow users to rapidly attach a new photo to a record. Tap the button and proceed with photo capture.

Records can also be deleted directly from a form 🔯

Using Forms in iOS

Forms in iOS provide the same basic functionality as Android forms. Adding a record will automatically default values based on Lucity business rules, defined global defaults, as well as form level defaults. For example, the work order status is automatically defaulted.

Fields on the form which are readonly are greyed out. Fields on the form that are required are marked with an asterisk. Fields which support manually entering text are black, and fields which may only be populated by picking a value are green.

	10:18 PM		
rk Orders	Work Orders - 2014-00883		🔒 🚍
Work Order # 2014-00883	Category * 13600 - Traffic Signs		Document Available
Status 2 New Work Order (i)	Problem * STRDGFGraffiti Removal - Streets		(i)
Status DateStatus Time8/20/201411:57 PM	Main Task 		(i)
Comment From Request			
Cause	(i)		
Assigned By	(i)	Assigned Date * 8/20/2014	Assigned Time
Assigned Crew	(i)		
Supervisor 129 JASON WRIGHT	(i)	Start Date	Start Time
Lead Worker	 (j)	End Date	End Time
Priority * 3 Next Day Priority (j)	0	Ov	verride Problem
Account #		Ov	verride Overdue
Proj No - Acct		Ov	verride Leadworker
Project Text		Ov	rerride Task
Reason		Ov	verride Supervisor

These forms support a pinch zoom feature allowing a user to zoom in and out of a form in iOS. This is particularly helpful when dealing with forms on an iPhone.

The category field in iOS can only be picked from the tree. It does not support manual typing:

	Category *	Cancel
Admin		
Call Center		(i) >
CIP		
Electric		(i) >
Environmental		(i) >
Equipment		

To drill into category child items in the category tree tap the (1) button.

Category items with child items will have the (i) button.

Public Works Department Traffic Division	Cancel
Street Light Controllers	
Street Lights	
Traffic Components	(i) >
Traffic Posts	
Traffic Signals	(i) >
Traffic Signs	

To navigate back up the tree use the navigation in the upper left corner of the category picklist dialog.

Public Works Department Traffi

Work flow setup picklist items other than Category support manually entering data or picking the value

Ç ,	-
Problem *	
Q	
Code	Туре
CSINFOWIN - Info - Walk In	
ENGTR002 - STUDIES SIGNS	
ENGTR010 - TRAFFIC MISCELLANE	EOUS
INV01 - SIGN INVENTORY	
PW001 - UTILITY LOCATIONS	

from a list. To select a value from a list, tap the (1). This list will only show values that are associated to the category already selected.

These picklists support searching which can be helpful in very long lists such as material lists. Searches use contains and will find all items which have the text entered anywhere in the code or text portion of the code/type combination.



STSNGF - Sign - Remove Graffiti

Date fields display a date select prompt. This opens when the field is tapped.



Assigned Tim	Clear Done	Cancer		Start Time
			10	$\frac{1}{7}$
			11	8
Start Time		AM	12	9
		PM	13	10
End Time			14	11
erride Problem			15	12
			16	1

Comment fields support multiple lines and carriage returns. The standard keyboard includes a "return" key for inserting carriage returns.

	10:16 PM	\$ 78% 💴
		···· 🔒 📑 📋
Department 41060Streets -Emergency Response Division Sub-Division Area Sub-Area Owner 1	Comment to Crew This is for comments And supports carriage returns	
Q W E R	T Y U I O	Р <
A S D	F G H J K	L return
▲ Z X C	V B N M !	?
.?123		.?123

The street list control supports both manually typing a street as well as choosing one.

	Street Name	
	Q	
100 HWY		
202 OVER PASS		
202 UNDER PASS		
87 HWY		

To search in the street list, enter a partial text. The control will search while typing. The Asset Rec # in work order asset also supports manually typing or choosing from a picklist.

iPad ᅙ	10:27 PM							
K Assets				ancel 📑 📑 📋				
Asset Rec # *	ID	NUMBER	MUTCD	LEGEND	TEXT	BLDG	DIR	STREE
Desc 1	1	155	R2-1	SPEED LIMIT (XX)	Speed Limi	2165	E	RANC
Desc 2	2	162	R8-3A	NO PARKING Symbol	No Parking	654	E	RANC
	4	487	D-3	STREET NAME SIGN	Melrose Dr	1565	E	RANC
	-	400	5.0	OTDEET MAKE OLOM	Mala D	1000	~	

This picklist scrolls left/right and up/down and supports paging. To search in the work order asset list, tap the search button and type in the search prompt and tap the Search button on the keyboard.

iPad 중	10:22 PM								
< Assets		Asset Rec # * Q Cancel							
Asset Rec # *	Q She	Q. Sherr							
Desc 1	ID	NUMBER	MUTCD	LEGEND	TEXT	BLDG	DIR	STREE	
Desc 2	15	1423	R1-1	STOP	Stop Sign	8644	E	SHERI	
	80	1548	D-3	STREET NAME SIGN		6436	E	SHERI-	

Other lookups such as the hydrant lookup on the hydrant inspections form behaves the same way.

Once all of the data is filled in, tap the savebutton to persist the data to the server. To save and close a form and return to the parent view, press and hold the save button to save and close the form. There is also a menu option to save and close the record.

iPac		10:31 PM	* 77% 💷 🕨
<		Assets - Street Sign 155	···· 🚍 🚍 🏨
Γ	Completion Date	Odometer -	Save And Close
L	Units	Hourmeter	Dashboard

Adding Child Records and Available Tools in iOS

Once the data is saved, the Child Views and Documents buttons on the toolbar may be used.



Note: Delete is not supported from forms in iOS; delete is only supported in the views.

To continue adding child information, after saving the record, tap the Child Views tool and select a child from the list. Continue adding information until all desired information is entered. Data is saved to the server immediately upon tapping save on each form. It is not possible to leave a form without either canceling and discarding changes or saving them.

This varies from Android slightly. Android will, in some cases (such as edits to existing records) allow navigating away from a record (to add child records for example) without saving the parent. Before leaving the object tree Android will prompt about unsaved changes.
Errors displayed on save

Both Android and iOS will display messages when a user tries to save a record with invalid data.

In Android these appear as toast messages:

Unit of Measure 1 - Hours Res Account #5411 Res Proj No - Acct User 1	WorkOrder Tas WorkOrder Em	e, object is invalid: WorkOrder (sk (BSRES Blue Stake Inquiry f nployee Resource (BRIAN ADK are set so that the Starting ar must match.	rom a Resident): INS Employee):	
		谷	Û	^

In iOS they are prompts



In both cases the record is not saved. The user must correct the problem and try the save again.

Warning Prompts

In addition to errors, the iOS application supports warning prompts. Warning prompts will display after tapping the save button. If there is more than one warning, they will be displayed one at a time with a Next button.



Once the full series of warnings is reviewed, an Ok button will be available. Tapping Ok will finish the save. Tapping cancel (or back and Cancel) will cancel the save.

The Android application will display a toast message with any warnings which will automatically fade away after displaying for a few seconds.

Parts Inventory Prompts

Both Android and iOS support parts inventory prompting when required. The parts prompt is displayed when a record is saved.

For this example, part 16775 Container, Front end Load, 6 yard is in parts inventory. Entering 10 units and tapping save prompts for which location to take the parts from:



B1 GWH1 Qty Avail: 0

The mobile application does not support designating multiple part locations for a single save. Tapping on a location will select it.

	Done
Please select which location to take the 10 Containe Front-end Load, 6 yard parts from	r,
yard swnasc Qty Avail: 178	~
1-11A1 fltnasc Qty Avail: -145	
B1 GWH1 Qty Avail: 0	

Tapping done will continue with the save and return to the form with the data saved.

Android works in an almost identical manner except that selecting a location from the parts prompt will immediately save and return to the saved data form. It is not necessary to tap done.

Information Needed
Please select which location to take the 10 Container, Front-end Load, ${\rm 6}$ yard parts from
yard swnasc Qty Avail: 178
1-11A1 fltnasc Qty Avail: -145
B1 GWH1 Qty Avail: 0
Cancel

Tapping cancel will cancel the save and return to the unsaved form.

Configuring Forms

Most forms configured for use in the web will be effective in the mobile without modification. Frames are not displayed in mobile.

It may be a good idea to review the number of fields on forms that will be used heavily in the field. If fields are not used and are only on the form because they were imported with a template, consider removing these. It requires time and memory to render forms. Forms with upwards of 200 fields will draw slower on the device and panning around a form will be slower and may not be smooth if there are too many fields present.

In some cases, certain fields may scrunch up and overlap slightly on the mobile device. An algorithm is used by the mobile applications to convert form position defined in the web into form position in iOS and Android. In some cases the width differences of labels and special fields like date/time and Boolean fields may cause fields to not line up nicely on the form. In this case the solution is to adjust the form design in Lucity Administration Tools in the form designer.

TRAINING GUIDE

Mobile Intensive

러는 러는 러는 러는

Tablet Intensive - GIS

One of the critical components of mobile is the GIS piece, and also can be the most complex. The mobile GIS maps are designed to consume the same maps that are defined for use on Lucity Web.

Contents

GIS in iOS2
GIS from the Dashboard2
Viewing and Changing Map Information3
Show In Map6
Map Navigation7
Searching in the map9
Inspecting and Selecting 15
Redlining in the map
Editing in the map
Android GIS
GIS from the Dashboard
Viewing and Changing Map Information 26
Map Navigation
Zooming and Panning
GPS Location
Bookmarks
Searching in the map
Searching for Addresses
Searching for Assets
Inspecting and Selecting 34
Identify
Point to address
Creating Requests or Work Orders at a Specified Point
Multiple select
Redlining in the map
Editing 41
Configuring GIS for mobile
Using Feature Services and ArcGIS Online instead of Map Services and ArcGIS Server

$\ensuremath{\text{GIS}}$ in iOS

GIS from the Dashboard

When GIS is launched from the dashboard it opens the map to the last used map in the last extent. The first time the map is opened, users may get a prompt for whether to allow Lucity to access the user's location:



(Note: This prompt may happen when the user logs in instead of when the map is opened).

If don't allow is selected, the GPS zoom functions will not work. The option selected is remembered and the system does not prompt again. To make changes to whether Lucity is allowed to access the device location, go to Settings on the iOS Device, go to Privacy, and select Location Services.



Find Lucity in the application list and toggle on or off the location services permission as desired:

iPad 🕈		10:23 AM	\$ 53% 🔳
	Settings	Privacy Location Services	
≁	Airplane Mode	Location Services	D
?	Wi-Fi Dori's Network	Location Services uses crowd-sourced Wi-Fi hotspot locations to determine your approximate location. About Location Services & Privacy	
*	Bluetooth On		
		T Apple Store	
Ľ	Notification Center	arcgis	D
	Control Center	Camera	
C	Do Not Disturb	© Chrome	
			$\tilde{\mathbf{O}}$
\odot	General	Goodreads	
*	Wallpapers & Brightness	8 Google	$\overline{\mathbf{D}}$
(()	Sounds	8 Google+	
â	Passcode		
	iCloud	Lucity - Lucity Testing	
	Mail, Contacts, Calendars	Lucity Citizen Portal	\mathcal{O}

Once in the map, the navigation button in the upper left will return to the previous screen (which will be the dashboard for this scenario).



There are 2 toolbar areas and a menu in the map. Several of the toolbars open panels with more options. In the iPhone, there is only one toolbar area (at the bottom) and a menu.

If a map has any secured services that do not have credentials pre-configured in Lucity Admin, the user will be prompted to log in when the map is opened.

Input Map	Credentials
Username	
Password	
Cancel	Submit

The map will prompt for the secure credentials for each layer but will only prompt once. Subsequent map opens will use the saved credentials. If you log out of the app or close it (by restarting the device or killing the running app), the credentials are cleared and the user will be required to re-enter them.

Viewing and Changing Map Information

The very first time the map is opened, it will attempt to use the map that is configured by default for the user. It is common to want to use an alternate map while in the field. This can be done by selecting the alternate map within the tablet. The tablet will remember the alternate map for the user logged in.

Changing maps

To change the map, click on the Maps Panel button . This will open a panel on the left hand side (or full screen for iPhone).



There are 4 sections in the map panel: Legend, Basemap, Layers, and Maps. Go to the Maps tab. All available maps will be listed. The currently loaded map is checked with a green checkmark.



To switch to a different map, select the alternate map in the list. The map will immediately redraw. The application will remember the new map selected for the next time the map is opened.

Changing the Base Map

To change the base map, select the base map tab. The existing base map will be selected. Tap a new basemap to select it. The change is effective immediately.



If the new basemap is in a different spatial reference than the original map, the map will zoom to the full extent. It is best if all base maps share the same spatial reference. For compatibility with Esri ArcGIS Online applications, using Web Mercator is a good idea for base map deployment.

The new basemap is remembered so that when the map is re-opened, it will use the newly selected basemap.

Turning Map Services On/Off

The application does not allow turning off individual layers in a map service, but it is possible to temporarily turn off an entire map service on the layers tab.

When the map is reopened it will reset the layer visibility.



Legend

A legend is available for the map as well. It is accessed on the Legend tab of the map panel.



Show In Map

The Show in Map function is available for many modules and can work on one or more selected records. By default it will first try and find assets. If it does not find any assets on the selected record, it will plot points and addresses.

Performing a show in map will plot the feature and label the feature based on the configured display field for the layer.



Configure the display field in ArcMap before deploying the service so that you don't also end up with OBJECTID as the display field as shown above.

Map Navigation

Zooming and Panning

The map supports drag pan navigation, flick pan navigation, and pinch zoom. Double tapping the map zooms as well. Double tapping zooms in centered on the current extent; it does not zoom in to the spot you double tap.

GPS Location

The map has a GPS location tool which will zoom and plot the current location if location services are

enabled for the Lucity app. Click the 🔘 to activate the GPS. The map will display a blue dot with a blue circle around it to indicate the current accuracy of the position. As you drive or move the map display will automatically pan to keep the current location within the extent.



Click the GPS button again 🙆 to change to a heading mode which will show the location and compass bearing.



To turn off the GPS, click the GPS button 💟 again, which will change it back to grey and turn off the GPS location.

Bookmarks

Bookmarks are an easy way to save an extent of a map to get back to it easily. The Bookmarks panel is

accessed from the upper right toolbar . This opens a panel displaying all of the existing bookmarks.

Q	1 ∦ 25	5% 📼
Bookmarks		

To add a bookmark for the current extent, click the "+" and give the bookmark a name.



To zoom to a bookmark, select it from the list.



Book marks can be deleted by swiping the bookmark entry to the left.



They can also be deleted by clicking the edit button, then clicking the red minus and click delete. Click Done to exit edit mode for the bookmarks

Searching in the map

Searching for Addresses

To search for an address in the map, click the search button in the upper right toolbar

This opens this search bar:



Tap into the search area and type the address and click Search. If the address is found, a green dot will be placed on the map at the calculated address location. Tap on the dot for more options including driving directions, creating a request for the selected address, and creating a work order for the selected address.

Notice in the following case it did not find an exact match.



This address search will use your custom geocoder. It will not work with geocoders that are not at least 10.2.2. If you are still on ArcGIS Server 10.1, you may need to temporarily switch to the Esri geocoder http://geocode.arcgis.com/arcgis/rest/services/World/GeocodeServer until you can get upgraded to a more recent ArcGIS release.

It is also important to configure the system default extent because this will be used to limit the address search context to only your agency's extent. This is done in GIS>>MapSetup in Lucity Administration Tools.

Driving directions will open the Apple Maps app and show driving directions from the current location (if available) to the searched address.



Creating a Work Order will create a work order using the default tablet category and will attach the address as a location on the work order. The following error indicates that the default category for the tablet is not configured yet.



To configure the category, click the menu button and select "Settings".

Scroll to the bottom of the settings form and select a Default Category

	1 🕴 22% 💶
CONNECTION TIMEOUT	
12000	
The number of milliseconds before the program stops attempting to connect.	
PORT	
80	
SCHEME	
http	
REST APPLICATION PATH	
LucityMobileServer	
The virtual directory of the Lucity Rest Application.	
Enable Full Logging	\bigcirc
This turns on more logging and is useful to Lucity Support when trying to diagnose problems.	
MAP SETTINGS	
Show In Map Search Priority	Prefer Assets
Default Category	000 - Tree

Tapping the category value will open a category prompt

Close - Culture and Ar Default Category	Done
16050 - Global Village Festival	
16060 - Hispanic Heritage Activities	
16070 - Leisure Programs	~
16080 - Library Facility	

Find the category you want to use as a default for this user on this tablet for this client and tap it to select it.

Show in Map Search Filonity	
Default Category	16070 - Leisure Programs

Now when the work order button is clicked, a work order is created, the address is added to the work order, and the work order is opened in a form.

Work Order # 2014-00885	Category * 16070 - Leisure Programs		Document Availab	olo
Status 2 New Work Order i	Problem *			
Status Date Status Time 8/21/2014 08:29 PM	Main Task			
Comment From Request				
Cause				
Assigned By		Assigned Date *	Assigned Time	
Assigned Crew				
Supervisor		Start Date	Start Time	
Lead Worker		End Date	End Time	
Priority *		0	Override Problem	
Account #		0	Override Overdue	
Proj No - Acct		0	Override Leadworker	
Project Text			Override Task	

At this point the work order can be filled in (and category can be changed, if desired). To view the location added to the work order, click the "..." child views button and select "Locations"

The address added to the work order is the located address, it is not the address searched. It is possible that the address locate may not find an exact match, but it will select the closest match. The match returned on the geolocate is what is placed in the work order location field.

		ork Requests - 2014-00		🔒 📇
		WOR FILLING W		
Phone 1		Phone 2		
Category				Override Supervisor
16070 - Leisure Programs Problem			(j)	Override Problem Notif
Cause		<u>(</u>)		Override Overdue
Priority	<u>(i)</u>	Follow-Up Date		Override Thank you
Loc Bldg#Loc Street Name2310E SHERRI DR	<u>(i)</u>	Loc Apart/Suite		Override Customer Compl
LocBldg#2 Loc Street2 Name	(i)			
General Location				
Loc City Gilbert		Loc Parcel Number		
Loc State Arizona	Loc Zip Code 85296	Loc Country		
TB Year		TB Page		TB Coordinates
Department	(i)	Sub Division	 (i)	

The work order is saved to the server before a form is displayed. Navigating away from the work order at this point will not cause the work order to be discarded.

This address does find an exact match. When the green dot is tapped, the address shown is the address that was searched.



Creating a request from an address search will create the request, default the category, and assign the location address of the request to the address from the search results. The form is opened so that any further edits can be made:

Searching for Assets

The Lucity iOS map application also allows searching for an asset based on full or partial common Id of

the asset. To search for an asset, click the Find button 💼 located on the bottom toolbar.

If there is more than one operational map service in the map, the dialog will allow you to select which map service the information is in.

	Find Assets	Close	✓ Find Assets	Done
MAP SERVICE		_	Sewer	
Sewer		>	Parks	
FEATURE TYPE				
Node Number - Sewer Nodes		>		
Items Common Name				
Supports '%' for partial match				
	FIND			

Then select the type of feature to find. The Feature type picklist shows both the common name of the asset type as well as the name of the field in that layer that will be searched.

Enter the text to search for. Include a % as a replacement for any character. For example to search for everything with the name South anywhere in the common id, enter %South%.

Click Find.

Find Assets	Close
MAP SERVICE	
Parks	>
FEATURE TYPE	
Alt Park ID - Parks	>
s%	
Supports '%' for partial match	
FIND	



If features are found they will be selected and the map will zoom to the first feature.

Tapping on the Arrow will show more features that were found from the search. Tapping the "i" will open the panel and show the details about the item that was found. If the panel is already open, it will update the panel to show details about the currently selected item in the popup.

Selections or graphics can be easily cleared using the Clear Graphics option in the menu



Inspecting and Selecting

To inspect or identify a feature in the map, use the identify button **()**. When the tool is selected it will have a grey background.

Tap the feature you want details on. This will pull up a popup with the type of feature as well as the display field for the feature. Additionally, a panel will open with the extended details about the feature.



There may be more than one feature at that location. To view other features at that tap point, click the green arrow to pull up a list of all features found. The popup is a scrollable list. Find the item you are interested in and select it from the popup list.

Identify Feature	
Sanitary Pipe Inventory - 1351	
Sanitary Pipe Inventory - 1065	2
	-
j Sanitary Structure Inventory - 127443	>
	6. TO

This will change the popup to show the new feature and will select the feature in the map. It will also update the details panel with information about the new feature.

At any time the details panel can be closed.



To get it back, click the "i".

The details panel provides a scrollable list with access to all of the attributes deployed for that feature in the map service and provides the ability to create a work order, a request, or an inspection on a feature, as well as view the Lucity feature relationships.

To create a work order for the current feature, click the Work Order button. This will create a new work order and attach the asset to the work order, and open the work order for further edits.

The category for the work order is assigned based on the default category defined in Lucity for the selected feature.

If there is no default category defined, the system finds the first available category in the category list with the correct asset type.

Creating a request works the same way as a work order from the identify dialog. Click the Create Request button and it will create the request for the asset, place the asset on the request and assign a category to the request based on the selected asset. The request form is then opened for any further edits. Creating an inspection from the identify dialog will create an inspection for the current feature for the current date and time. If there is more than one possible inspection type, the user is prompted for which type of inspection to create:



The created inspection is opened for further editing in a form.

In all of these actions, the upper left navigation will return to the map to continue working within the map.

iPad 중 8:37 P				
< Maps	1		Pipe Air T	
	Pipe Rec # 🗸 🗸	Work Project Rec 🗸	Plan USMH	
•••	25851	1	A	
•••	25851	2		

Clicking the relationships button opens a panel showing all relationships to the current feature. Clicking on one of the relationships in the list will open a view which contains all of the items for the selected relationship.

Kelationships
Sewer Pipes - 1
Sewer TV Inspections - 1
Sewer Pipe Air Tests - 2
Work Orders - 1
Work Requests - 1

Point to address

One of the other tools provided in the tablet map is the ability to tap a point on the map and have the

map attempt to calculate what the address is for that location. To use this, click the **set** tool on the bottom toolbar and tap a location on the map. This will bring up a prompt showing the approximated address:



The work order, request, and driving directions tools on this dialog work the same as the address search dialog discussed earlier in the session.

This tool uses only the ArcGIS Online geocoder for the reverse lookup: <u>http://geocode.arcgis.com/arcgis/rest/services/World/GeocodeServer</u>. It is not possible to customize this.

Creating Requests or Work Orders at a Specified Point

If a work order or request is not being performed at a specific address or on a specific asset, using the

XY tool is a good way to identify the location of the work being done. Tap the location on the map where the work is. This will prompt for what to do with the specified point.

Close	Create From XY			
WHAT WOULD YOU LIKE TO	DO WITH THIS LOCATION?			
X : 756960.936492				
Y : 847546.665635				
٩	Q			

Creating a work order will create a new work order using the defined default category and add a location record with the specified XY. Creating a request will create a new request using the default category for the user/tablet and will put the XY on the request as the request location.

The coordinates displayed in the prompt are in the local defined coordinate system. This may vary from the map coordinate system. The Lucity mobile application automatically projects these coordinates into the operational coordinate system defined in the system settings.

Multiple select

It is possible to select and work with multiple assets at a time. This is done using the 🔯 tool on the lower toolbar. The tool prompts for which map service and layer you want to select features from:

Close	Select Features	
MAP SERVICE		
Sewer		>
FEATURE TYPE		
	ure - Sanitary Sewer Services	>
	•	
	SELECT	

Clicking Select returns you to the map to start tapping the desired features to be added to the multiselect. Each feature in the selected layer that is tapped will be highlighted and the identifier will be added to the list of features in the Select Features pane.



To unselect a feature, swipe the identifier to the left in the select features list or click the edit button and tap the red minus. Then click delete.

Close	Select Features	Done
3464		
3471		
2983		
		Delete
3492		
3512		

A running count of features is show at the bottom along with tools to create work orders, requests, and inspections on the selected features.

Creating a work order creates one work order and attaches all assets to the work order. The work order form is opened for further editing.

The Create Request function creates one request for each item. The system will prompt and display how many requests were created. No view or form is opened.



Create inspections will create an inspection for each feature on the list for the current date and time. Some features support multiple types of inspections. These features will have an additional prompt for which type of inspection to create.

~

The inspections are created and a prompt is displayed.



Redlining in the map

Maps can be configured to allow users to redline graphics and make notes directly in the map. Redlining is different than editing because it is not designed to work with Lucity features. It is designed to provide a way to communicate with back end GIS staff or other agency staff about something in the map. Redlining uses feature services with ArcGIS Server or on ArcGIS Online.

Maps which have a layer which is compatible with redlining will have a pencil in the upper toolbar:



Tapping this tool will open a redline objects panel which displays all available redlining objects that may be added in the map and includes a tool which allows existing redlining objects to be selected at the bottom of the panel.

	1 ≉ 100% ►
	se Redline Objects
•	field needs inspection
٠	new hydrant
•	Meter
	Work Area
	Landscaping
	Plantings
/	Guardrail
/	Service
/	Conduit
•	field needs inspection
•	new hydrant
•	Meter
	Work Area
	►

Up to 3 possible redlining layers may be configured for a map; one point layer, one polyline layer, and one polygon layer. These correspond to 3 layers in a single feature service. Within each layer, multiple feature templates or types can be defined. This is done in ArcMap.

This example has 3 layers and each layer has multiple feature templates configured. This is a screen shot of these configured templates in ArcMap. It is not required to use feature templates.



To create a new feature, select the feature from the redline objects list. The application will prompt for attributes for the feature.

NAME field needs inspection	>
DESCRIPTION	>
NOTES	>
NOTES2	>
12	

To enter data in these fields, tap the item, enter text or select from the picklist, and click Done.

Cancel Do	ne	Cancel	
DESCRIPTION		REASON	
This spot looks really bad!			
		Unknown	×
		Map Error	
27/15	50 🛞	Emergency	
-			

When done editing the fields, click the draw icon at the bottom of the form

NAME Work Area	>
DESCRIPTION This is a second area to review	>
NOTES	>
NOTES2	>

This will redisplay the map and will change the upper right toolbar to add tools which support the current redlining operation.

The map can still be panned and zoomed while in the redlining operation is active. Once the feature is drawn in the map, click the "Save" button to persist it.



This will show the attribute dialog again for final review. Click Done to close the dialog.

To edit the attributes or shape of an existing feature, use the select button and tap on the feature. This re-opens the attributes dialog so that attribute or feature edits may be made.



To leave redlining mode, close the redlining pane.

Editing in the map

Editing is also supported in the Lucity iOS map. Edits made while out in the field are made directly to the Esri geodatabase using feature services. You should not allow users to edit in the field if you are still using the Lucity GIS SOE for your GIS edit maintenance. You should only enable this feature if you have switched to using feature services for GIS edit maintenance.

To enable feature editing, check the "Has Feature Service" checkbox in the Map services setup.

GIS Map Serv	ices								
	Order	Opacity	Base Map?	Tiled?	Feature)isable .ocal Caching	Require Logon?	UserName	Password
MapServer	0			-					
3L	2								

To disable editing on a service in one specific map, check the "Disable Edits" checkbox in the Map setup dialog.



If a map has layers which are editable, an additional icon will be displayed in the upper right toolbar:



Clicking on this will prompt you for what layer you want to edit.	lf
you have multiple map services in the map that support feature	
editing, you will first be prompted which service the layer is in.	

Nicole	Done
Water Main Breaks	
Water Valves	
Water Hydrants	×
Water Services	
Water Mains	
Water Site	

Once you select a layer, a feature pane will be displayed and it will show all available feature templates for that layer. For the layer I have selected (Water Hydrants) I only have one feature template defined:

O Water Hydrants
•

The editing process works the same for these features as the redline editing once a target layer is selected.

Android GIS

GIS from the Dashboard

When GIS is launched from the dashboard it opens the map to the last map in the last extent.



If a map has any secured services that do not have credentials pre- configured in Lucity Admin, the user will be prompted to log in when the map is opened.

Enter Credentials					
Some layers are secured. Please enter credentials to access this data.					
Username:					
Password:					
Cancel OK					

Viewing and Changing Map Information

The very first time the map is opened, it will attempt to use the map that is configured by default for the user. It is common to use an alternate map while in the field though, and this can be done by selecting the alternate map within the tablet. The tablet will remember the alternate map.

Changing maps

To change the map, select change map from the menu.



This will open a maps panel to select a new map. To close the maps panel, select Change map from the menu again. The menu option works like a toggle. All available maps will be listed. The currently loaded map is selected. To switch to a different map, select the alternate map in the list. The map will immediately redraw. The application will remember the new map selected for the next time the map is opened.

		X 🖡	? = 9:2	9 AM
× Y	0	A		:
Q		Maps		
Redlinir	ng Test	All		0
Redlinir Templa		out Featu	ure	0
Redline Service		ith Secu	re Local	0
Secure	Redlinir	ng		0
QA Tab	let Test	Мар		۲
QA Map	o One Se	ervice No	Redline	0
Parks S	upport	Editing		0
ACT 20	14			0

Base maps are not currently supported in the Android tablets. Take this into consideration when designing maps. If both Android and iOS applications are used at the agency, it may be a good idea to design separate maps for iOS and Android use.

Turning Map Services On/Off

The application does not allow turning off individual layers in a map service, but it is possible to turn off an entire map service on the layers tab. To open the layers panel, select Toggle Layers from the menu. This will open up a layers panel.

		X (*	9:31	AM
» х ү	0	A		1
1		Layers		
Sewer				~
Parks				~

Turn off or on any layers desired and close the toggle layers panel by selecting Toggle layers from the menu again. When the map is reopened it will remember the layer visibility.

Map Navigation

Zooming and Panning

The map supports drag pan navigation and pinch zoom. It also supports a press and hold magnifier. To activate this, tap and hold on the map until the magnifying glass shows up. The magnifier can be dragged around the screen as needed. To close the magnify window, drag it then release your finger and it will disappear.



GPS Location

The map has a GPS location tool which will zoom and plot the current location. Click I to activate the GPS. The map will display a blue dot with a blue circle around it to indicate the current accuracy of the position. As you drive or move, the map display will automatically pan to keep the current location within the extent.



To turn off the GPS, click the GPS button

again, which will change it back to grey and turn off the GPS location.



Bookmarks

Bookmarks are an easy way to save an extent of a map to get back to it easily. Bookmarks are also important for the go offline process for maps. The Bookmarks panel is accessed from the upper right toolbar



This opens a panel displaying all of the existing bookmarks.



To add a bookmark for the current extent, click the "+" and give the bookmark a name.

Create Bookmark						
Please enter a name for this bookmark.						
act 2014 <u>#1</u> ,						
Cancel	Ok					

To zoom to a bookmark, select it from the list. To edit or remove a bookmark, press and hold on the bookmark.

Bookmarks
Locate in Map
Edit Bookmark
Remove Bookmark

Tap the bookmark star tool to close the bookmarks pane.

Searching in the map

Searching for Addresses

To search for an address in the map, click the search button in the upper right toolbar



Tap into the search area and type the address and click the search icon on the keyboard. If the address is found, a green dot will be placed on the map at the calculated address location. Tap on the dot for more options including driving directions, creating a request for the selected address, and creating a work order for the selected address.

Address searches will use your own geocoder. If you are not on ArcGIS 10.2 or higher, we recommend using the ArcGIS Online geocoder:

http://geocode.arcgis.com/arcgis/rest/services/World/GeocodeServer



Notice in the following case it did not find an exact match.



Driving directions will open the available routing apps and show driving directions from the current location (if available) to the searched address.

Complete action using					
Internet	Maps				
Always	Just once				

Creating a Work Order will create a work order using the default tablet category and will attach the address as a location on the work order.

2014-00901 Locations (1) WO Checklin	st (0) Events (0)	Tasks (0) Work Order Tracking (1)	Comments (0) Work Orders (0)	Assets (0)
2014-00901 Status	01000 *Problem	Admin		
2 - New Work Order			Q	
Status Date Status Ti		c .		

To configure the category, click the menu button on the Dashboard and select "View Settings" from the dashboard.

When the work order button is clicked, a work order is created, the address is added to the work order, and the work order is opened in a form. At this point the work order can be filled in (and category can be changed, if desired).

The address added to the work order is the located address, it is not the address searched. It is possible that the address locate may not find an exact match, but it will select the closest match. The match returned on the geolocate is what is placed in the work order location field.

The work order is saved to the server before a form is displayed. Navigating away from the work order at this point will not cause the work order to be discarded.

This address does find an exact match.



Creating a request from an address search will create the request, default the category, and assign the location address of the request to the address from the search results. The form is opened so that any further edits can be made.

Searching for Assets

The Lucity Android map application also allows searching for an asset based on full or partial common Id of the asset. To search for an asset, click the Find button.



If there is more than one operational map service in the map, the dialog will allow you to select which map service the information is in and the type of feature to find. The Feature type picklist shows both the common name of the asset type as well as the name of the field in that layer that will be searched.

Find Asset	
Map Service:	
Parks	
Feature Type:	
Parks - Alt Park ID	
4	
Supports '%' for partial match	
Cancel	Find

Enter the text to search for. Include a % to search for any character. For example to search for everything with the name South anywhere in the common id, enter %South%.

Click Find.

If features are found they will be selected in the map.



Tapping on the item will show more features that were found from the search. In the above example, only one feature was found.
Tapping the 0 will open a popup and show the details about the item that was found.

Parks	s Details
GlobalID	. {1716A099-0F49-4907- B6EA-80E5607EB993}
Last Modified By	: Lucity
Owner Code	:1
Alt Park ID	: 4
Last Synchronized Date	: 12/06/2011 8:00:00 AM
Last Modified date	: 12/07/2011 12:44:30 AM
SHAPE.STLength()	: 5982.228671649304
Area	: 1985277.0
SHAPE.STArea()	: 2060148.0505981445
In Lucity Database?	:1
Park No.	:1
Park Name	: Crossroads District Park
OBJECTID	:1
<u>_</u>	>
(Close

Tap the back button to close the popup.

📑 😵 🔜 👒 🏢 🛟 🖻 🕏						💐 🛜 📒 10:	52 A
1- 4			=	iô1	J	Q 📘	1
rk Parcels (0) Park Valves (112) Pla	warounds (0) Pools (1) Meters (1)	Tree Inventory (120)	Parking Lots (2)	Paths (15)	Park S	tructures (16)	Field
Park Rec # *Alt Park ID	Park Name						
1 4	Crossroads District Park						
Status							
·							
Address Street Name	Q						
····							
Address 2 Address 2 Name	Q						
Gen. Location							
West side of city							
City							
Park Supervisor	Date Opened						
Jack Mattson	04/10/1950						
Туре	Opening						
3 - Sports Park	8:00 AM						
District	Closing						
1 - One	10:00 PM						

Hit back to return to the map.

Selections or graphics can be easily cleared using the Clear Graphics option in the menu



Inspecting and Selecting

Identify

To inspect or identify a feature in the map, use the identify tool.



Tap the feature you want details on. This will pull up a popup with the name of the display field as well as value of the display field for the feature.



There may be more than one feature at that location. To view other features at that tap point, click the green arrow to pull up a list of all features found. The popup is a scrollable list. Find the item you are interested in and select it from the popup list.

	Service Structure - 2383	4	<
	Service Structure - 2443		
-	Service Structure - 13606		I
	Service Structure - 37189		
	US Structure - 117619	· ·	H
	US Structure - 119480	1 1	
	Service Structure - 2383		₽
×			\rightarrow

The details popup provides a scrollable list with access to all of the attributes deployed for that feature in the map service and provides the ability to create a work order, a request, or an inspection on a feature, as well as view the Lucity feature relationships.

To create a work order for the current feature, click the Work Order button. This will create a new work order and attach the asset to the work order, and open the work order for further edits. The category for the work order is assigned based on the default category defined in Lucity for the selected feature. If there is no default category defined, the system finds the first available category in the category list with the correct asset type.

<	0891						Ō	J	Q	ŧ
2014-00891										
Locations (1)	Assets (1)	WO Checklist (0)	Work Order Events (0)	Tasks (0)	Work Order Tracking (1)	Comments (0)				
Work Order #		*Category			Document Availa	ble				
2014-00891		21300	Sewer Service	Q						
Status		*Problem								
2 - New Wo	k Order					Q				
Status Date	Status T	ime Main Tasl	k							
08/22/2014	12:58	3 PN			Q					
Comment From F	equest									
Enter your c	omment her	re								

Click Back to go back to the map

Creating a request works the same way as a work order from the identify dialog. Click the Create Request button and it will create the request for the asset, place the asset on the request and assign a category to the request based on the selected asset. The request form is then opened for any further edits.

Creating an inspection from the identify dialog will create an inspection for the current feature for the current date and time. If there is more than one possible inspection type, the user is prompted for which type of inspection to create:

Inspection Type
Sewer Service Lateral Inspections
Sewer LACP Inspections
Cancel

The created inspection is opened for further editing in a form.

< 8/22/2014	1			Ô	Q	:
8/22/2014 1						
*Service Structure/L	ateral No.	Service Insp Rec # Most Recent Ins	spect			
2413	369	22				
*Inspection Date	Time Televised	*Inspect Direction				
08/22/2014		1 - From Main to Service				
Inspection Crew		Inspection Type				
Inspected By						

Clicking the relationships button opens a panel showing all relationships to the current feature (where there are records). Clicking on one of the relationships in the list will open a view which contains all of the items for the selected relationship.

Relationships
Sewer Service Laterals - 1
Sewer Service Lateral Inspections - 1
Work Orders - 1
Work Requests - 1
Close

To turn off the identify tool and remove the graphics from the map, click the identify button again on the toolbar or select a different tool.

Point to address

One of the other tools provided in the tablet map is the ability to tap a point on the map and have the map attempt to calculate what the address is for that location.



Tap a location on the map to open a prompt showing the approximated address:

- Sunda - Alan		
Cı	reate From Addre	SS
What would you like t	o do with this address?	, ,
2506 E Camellia	Dr , Gilbert	
2	\bigcirc	55
	Cancel	
	- SATURA	THE REAL AND

This reverse geocode uses the Esri world geocoding service. It does not use your own geocoding service for the search operation.

The work order, request, and driving directions tools on this dialog work the same as the address search dialog discussed earlier in the session.

Creating Requests or Work Orders at a Specified Point

If a work order or request is not being performed at a specific address or on a specific asset, using the XY tool is a good way to identify the location of the work being done.



Tap the location on the map where the work is. This will prompt for what to do with the specified point.



Creating a work order will create a new work order using the defined default category and add a location record with the specified XY. Creating a request will create a new request using the default category for the user/tablet and will put the XY on the request as the request location.

The coordinates displayed in the prompt are in the local defined coordinate system. This may vary from the map coordinate system. The Lucity mobile application automatically projects these coordinates into the operational coordinate system defined in the system settings.

Multiple select

It is possible to select and work with multiple assets at a time using the multi-select tool:



The tool prompts for which map service and layer you want to select features from:

Select F	eatures					
Map Service:						
Sewer						
Feature Type:						
Sanitary Pipe Inventory - Alt Pipe ID						
Cancel	ОК					

The tool then expands in preparation to display the list of features you select.

Selected Features
Tap on the Map to Add
Sanitary Pipe Inventory - Alt Pipe ID
Count: 0 🥔 🔇 🖳 💥

Clicking Select returns you to the map to start tapping the desired features to be added to the multiselect. Each feature in the selected layer that is tapped will be highlighted and the identifier will be added to the list of features in the Select Features pane.



To unselect a feature, click the "X" next to the feature in the list. Tapping a feature in the pane will flash the feature in the map.

A running count of features is show at the bottom along with tools to create work orders, requests, and inspections on the selected features.

Creating a work order creates one work order and attaches all assets to the work order. The work order form is opened for further editing.

2014-00	892							Ô	Q	÷
2014-00892										
Locations (0)	Assets (9)	WO Checklist (0) !	Nork Order Events (0)	<u> Tasks (0)</u>	Work Order Tracking (1)	Comments (0)			
Work Order #		*Catego	ory			Document Availa	ble			
2014-00892		2120	00	Sewer Pipe	Q					
Status		*Proble	em							
2 - New Work	Order						Q			
Status Date	Status T	ime Main Ta	ask							
08/22/2014	1:10	PM				Q				
Comment From Be	auest									

The Create Request function creates one request for each item. The system will display a toast message to indicate that the creation was successful.



Create inspections will create an inspection for each feature on the list for the current date and time. Some features support multiple types of inspections. These features will have an additional prompt for which type of inspection to create.

Inspection Type
Sewer TV Inspections
Sewer Line Lampings
Sewer Smoke Tests
Sewer Building Inspections
Sewer PACP Inspections
Sewer Pipe Air Tests
Sewer Pipe Mandrel Tests
Cancel

The inspections are created and a toast is displayed.



Redlining in the map

Maps can be configured to allow users to redline graphics and make notes directly in the map. Redlining is different than editing because it is not designed to work with Lucity features. It is designed to provide a way to communicate with back end GIS staff or other agency staff about something in the map. Redlining uses feature services with ArcGIS Server or on ArcGIS Online.

Maps which have a layer which is compatible with redlining will have a menu option for Edit Redlining.





Tapping this tool will open a redline objects panel with tools for adding lines, points, polygons, and for selecting existing redlining features. Use these tools to draw on the map. After the feature is drawn, a prompt will be displayed to enter attributes:

Redlining			
NAME			
REASON			
DESCRIPTION			
NOTES			
NOTES2			
Cancel	Save		

This prompt does not provide a picklist for fields with GIS domains.

To edit the attributes or shape of an existing feature, use the select button 🖑 and tap on the feature. This will select the feature. Tap the "i" to edit the attributes.

To leave redlining mode, select Edit Redlining from the menu to close the panel.

Editing

In addition to redlining, we also support a Feature Editing function which provides a more flexibility. It can be used, for example, to edit features integrated with Lucity. Before setting users up to do this, make sure you are not using the Lucity SOE GIS edit method any longer. You need to be using the Lucity feature services method for your edit maintenance.

If a Map Service has a corresponding feature service, you can check the Has Feature Service checkbox in Map Services to enable feature editing.

GIS Map Services									
	Order	Opacity	Base Map?	Tiled?	Has Feature Service?)isable .ocal laching	Require Logon?	UserName	Password
MapServer	0			•					
al.	2								

(If you want to disable editing for certain maps, this can be done in the Map Setup form).

🔶 GIS Map Edit						D X		
Name Nicoles Map for Training Lucity application(s) that can use this map: Web & Mobile V								
Geocoding	Geocoding							
Default Geocoding Url: http://geocode.arcgis.com/arcgis/	/rest/services/World/GeocodeSer	ver						
Geocoding Uri [if http://demo.lucity.net/arcgis/rest/services/GeoLocate/GeocodeServer								
Redlining Select the feature service that contains the redlining layers: V	Select the feature service that contains the redining layers:							
Available Web Services	Services to Display in Map							
dynamic << Remove	Name	Url	Order Order Override	Disable Disable Identify Edits	Disable Visibility	Default Extent		
worldtopo dynamic transparent =	Nicole							
parcels 6080 operational 6080	Parcels	http://demo.lucity.net/arcgis/rest/services/Parcels/MapServer	5					
SSL					·			

If at least one layer supports editing, an additional menu option will be available from the overflow menu "Feature Editing".



If there are multiple map services which support editing, you will be prompted for the map service you want to edit. If you only have one editable map service, this step is skipped.

Next you are prompted for what layer to edit:

Select Features				
Map Service:				
Nicole	4			
Feature Type:				
Water Hydrants				
Cancel	ок			

This opens the feature editing pane.



From this point on, the workflow is the same as redlining.

Configuring GIS for mobile

If maps are already configured for Lucity Web, it may not be necessary to make many, if any, adjustments for mobile except to ensure that the tablet can access the GIS resources. We do not recommend using the alternate external Url. This will be removed in a future release.

Using Feature Services and ArcGIS Online instead of Map Services and ArcGIS Server

This documentation covers using Map Services with the Lucity Mobile iOS Map. It is also possible to use feature services in lieu of map services. This would be the suggested method if you were hosting all of your GIS data on ArcGIS Online for your mobile users.

If you have a choice, we currently recommend using the ArcGIS Server and Map Service model because it provides a little more flexibility and functionality with our current offerings. This is what was presented in today's session.

TRAINING GUIDE

Mobile Intensive Offline 러는 러는 러는 러는

clarity through connections www.lucity.com 10561 Barkley, Suite 500 Overland Park, KS 66212 913.341.3105

Tablet Intensive - Offline

Contents

Going Offline2
Android2
Apple4
GIS Offline
Android5
Apple
Working Offline
Android8
Adding new work orders and requests8
Editing Data Offline 10
Parts Inventory Prompting 11
Error handing and resolution 11
Conflict Resolution
Inventory and Inspections Offline 12
Troubleshooting or inspecting offline data status
Apple
Adding and editing data 14
Synchronizing data back to the server 14
Parts Inventory Prompting 14
Error handing and resolution
Troubleshooting or inspecting offline data status
Documents while offline 16
Offline Workflows 17
Example 1 17
Example 2
Inventory Data Cache
Views/Data
Configuring what data is potentially available to offline users
Enabling the Android or Apple (iOS) cache
Configuring how often your users get updates 21
Performance Considerations
GIS
Configuring Feature Services
Tile Caches

Going Offline

When an end user needs to go offline, they will click the "Go Offline" button (Android) or the Offline

button on the iPad. This button is available on the dashboard. Clicking this will take their inventory, work order, and inspection data offline. It does not take map data offline. That must be done from the map they want offline.

Android

This is what the progress looks like on Android

Going Offline
In order to work offline you'll need to download data locally
*
10%
Downloading Data Chunks (This may take a while)
Cancel

Downloading Offline			e Data		
✓ Electric		_			
🎋 Storm	Skip				
Sewer Common Work Water Park Street					
Ca	ncel			Skip Remaining	1

- There are several stages of download, it downloads the Work Order and Request data live from the server
- It persists this to local disk
- It downloads some setup data like the relationships between categories and work flow setup codes
- It downloads cached inventory datasets (these are not live; they are cached at 2a by default). It only downloads these if the setup indicates that they are needed (or that an update is needed) for the current user. This is not based on whether the underlying data is changed, this is based on a timed interval you specify for your agency or that user (quarterly, monthly, yearly)
- It clears existing data that should either no longer be accessible or that is being updated.

• It writes the cached inventory datasets locally to disk

The data that is downloaded includes views, forms, picklists, work orders, requests, and inventory data. No inspections are downloaded.

It is possible to skip downloads to save time. If the Work item is not allowed to download, it will not update the work views. If there is not an existing set of work view data already downloaded to the device, work orders and requests will be un-useable in the field.

When everything successfully downloads, the dashboard changes to show a "Go Online" button:

🗕 🥵 🐼 🗠 🔤 🛟 🖻		💐 🗊 🗕 9:22 AM
Lucity Mobile - Dashl	board (Offline)	
Offline	Open Work Orders and Requests	
	All Requests entered this month (18) Park Work Orders (30)	
		0 Items Ready for Save
		↑ ^

Apple

On an Apple device there is only one progress dialog:

	cel Go Offline	
No.	Equipment	Skip
	Street	
	Park	
	Water	
	Work	
	Common	
	Sewer	
	Storm	

Cano	cel Go Offline
	Common
	Sewer
	Storm
	Electric
	Street Name List
State of the second sec	Work Components
	Short Term
	Dashboards

It downloads inventory data (which can be skipped), work component information (relationships between employees, problems, actions, etc and Categories), dashboards, and the Short Term cache (work orders and requests). The Dashboards, Short Term, and Work Components cannot be skipped. If you skip the Work cache and have never done a download before, you will not have any views or forms accessible for viewing or editing work order or request data.

When the offline process is completed, the button changes to a cloud with the arrow pointing up. Users will click on this when they are ready to go back online.

Dashboards	Work Orders	🔞 ሰ
Work Orders	Work Orders	
	My Recent Work Orders (23)	(j) >

GIS Offline

GIS data is not taken offline during the "Go Offline" process. GIS offline data is managed separately from the Lucity data. When launching the map from an offline dashboard, the system will check to see if there is an available offline map. If there is not one, the user must take a map offline to continue. A network connection is required to take a map offline.

Before taking a map offline, the current map should have a bookmark created for the map. The user will select this bookmark when taking the map offline. Currently bookmarks must be created on the tablet using the map that needs to go offline by the user that wants to take the map offline. In a future release, we will support a more robust bookmark management which supports sharing across applications and users.

After creating the necessary bookmark(s), follow these steps to go offline:

Android

To take a map offline in Android, select "Take Map Offline" from the menu

Take Map Offline		
This will download all features for the current map in your current extent. The number of features you can select may be limited by the server.		
Please choose an extent to take offline		
Use Current Extent		
Cancel Download New Map Data		

Select the bookmark and click "Download new map data"

If a map was previously downloaded to the device, you will get an option to use the existing map in lieu of downloading a new one.

Apple

To take a map offline on an iPad, go to the map you want off line and click the botton. Select the bookmark to be taken offline when prompted.

	Bookmarks			
Please select a bookmarked area to take the map offline				
park demo 1	09/06/2016 02:22 PM			

If a map was previously downloaded to the device, you will get an option to use the existing map in lieu of downloading a new one.

The system will download any necessary data (and load any side-loaded tiled maps as needed) and display the offline map to the user. The ArcGIS Server instance will limit how many features are downloaded. This is configured in ArcGIS Server and is limited to 1000 features for the service. There is no control over which 1000 features are returned and if an extent has more than 1000 features there is no notification that not all features were downloaded.

Depending on how the maps and map services are designed in Lucity Administration tools it is theoretically possible for the maps to look different offline than online. Offline maps do not support advanced symbology, data joins, plus other features that online maps can use. You also may make the decision not to include all map services in the offline map.

Once a map is available offline, it can be re-used without downloading again. If a map has already been downloaded for the device, the prompt for taking a map offline will provide information about what map is already available offline and ask the user what should be done:

Android



Apple

Take Map Offline
An existing map is already available on this device. The map is Matt Sewer and Park - Default for the bookmark "another". It was taken offline on 09-06-2016 at 02:33:39 PM. Would you like to use this existing map and extent?
Yes
No
Cancel

Maps are stored on a user by user basis on the device.

Most features from the online map work the same offline. There are a few functionalities not supported offline. Some of these limitations are:

- Offline maps do not support searching for addresses
- Show in map will not show addresses. It will only show XY points and assets.
- Offline maps do not support redlining
- Offline maps do not currently support the relationships tool (viewing related inspections, viewing related work orders)

Working Offline

Only dashboard items that are marked for mobile offline use will appear in the dashboard. Only data drills, asset trees, and quick lookups show up on an offline dashboard (quick lookups for Apple online and offline dashboards coming Fall 2016).

	2014r2	2015	2015r2	2016	2016r2
Android Offline	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х
iOS Offline				х	Х
Asset Trees Offline				х	Х
Expanding Asset Trees Offline					Х
Expanding Data Drills Offline				х	Х
Quick Lookup Android				х	Х
Quick Lookup iOS					Х

Once offline, it is not possible to log out or to change clients. Users can exit the app. Re-opening the app opens it in offline mode and does not require a password. It is recommended that tablets be configured with lock screen passcodes to protect data.

The data that is downloaded as a part of the offline cache can range from 500MB to several GB depending on the size of the data on the server and what programs are configured to download to the device. We recommend allotting at least 1 GB for each primary Lucity system that will be on the device (Sewer, Work, Water, Parks, Streets, Storm, Facilities/Fleet/Equip, Electric, GIS). These data caches are shared across users on a device. (Note: GIS offline maps are not shared; however GIS Tiled caches can be shared if they are side-loaded).

Android

Existing work orders and requests are only accessible from the dashboard for Android. Work Orders and requests can be added through a view launched from a data drill, or from a view launched from the modules menu, or from GIS.

Toolkits and the Create Work Order and Create Request view buttons are not supported offline. Picklists for work order assets in the work order and request and PM forms are also not currently available offline (although the asset data can be manually entered if the user knows the asset id).

Adding new work orders and requests

Adding Work Orders and requests offline is very similar to online. Most of the custom business logic and defaulting does not occur until the data has been saved to the server, however. For example, if a user selects a problem with a default task, that default task will not be automatically populated while offline. The user can either manually select the task or leave it blank and it will populate when the work order is pushed online.

This work order was added offline from the Parks data drill:

Work Orders			
PrivateID:	Work Order #:	Category Text: Park Court	Main Task Text:
Address:	Street Name:	Problem Text: Miscellaneous Problem	Reason Text:
Lead Worker Text:	Assigned Crew Text:	Supervisor Text:	Status:
Status Text:	Status Date:	Start Date:	End Date:
Comment Fromact 2014 sd Request:			
PrivateID: 8773	Work Order #: 2014-00874	Category Text: Park	Main Task Text:
Address:	Street Name: AMBER	Problem Text:	Reason Text:
Lead Worker Text:	Assigned Crew Text:	Supervisor Text:	Status: 2
Status Text: New Work Order	Status Date: 07/31/2014	Start Date:	End Date:
Comment From Bequest:			

Once added, the work order is automatically added to the Parks data drill with Android (even if it does not meet the criteria for that drill, the offline app does not have enough info to know this). However, the count on the Parks drill is not updated. The count will continue to show the original server side accurate count at the time of download. The work order is also added to the work orders collection accessed from the Modules menu. The new work order will continue to be displayed in the data drill and in the modules menu until the user goes online, then goes offline again. At that point, the work order will no longer appear in the modules menu and will only appear in the data drill if it meets the criteria defined on the server for the data drill.

Notice that the text for records added offline are green.

Continuing on creating this work order, one task and one material were added. The task start and end dates were populated, the resources start and end dates were left blank.

Tasks			🛅 📀 🔍 🗄
Park Work Orders > New > Ta	sks		
PrivateParentID: Task Text: Bee Problem EF # of Units:	PrivatelD: Start Date: 08/25/2014 Actual Labor Hours:	Seq No: End Date: 08/25/2014 Task Supervisor Text:	Task: ERBU05 UOM:
Aterials الم			违 📀 < 🗄
Park Work Orders > <u>New</u> > <u>Ta</u>	<mark>isks</mark> > <u>New</u> > Materials		
PrivateParentID:	PrivatelD:	Material: pkmsc	Material Text: Parks - Miscellaneous Materials
UOM: Resource Comment:	Units: 5	Unit Cost:	Total Cost:

Going back to the dashboard, the dashboard will show how many items are offline and need to be saved to the server due to changes made. In this case, there are 3 (the work order, the task, and the material resource).

🗕 🛟 🔀 🌄 🖾 🛟 🌶	Ê	🏹 🗊 🗕 10:40 AM
Lucity Mobile - Dash	board (Offline)	GO ONLINE COMAP MODULES
Offline	Open Work Orders and Requests	
	All Requests entered this month (18) Park Work Orders (30)	
		3 Items Ready for Save
		t) <

Clicking the "3 Items Ready to Save" button will push these changes to the server (but will not download any new data from the server).

Once the data is pushed to the server, the dates on the material are populated on the server based on the task dates (along with unit of measure and other defaulted values based on the data entered on the forms).

Even if the work order or request does not meet the user's dashboard criteria, the offline work order will remain available to the user since the user has not gone back online.

Editing Data Offline

Editing data offline is very similar. The following work order was edited while offline. The text for work orders with offline edits is blue:

Park Work Orders			ि 📀 🔍	
k Work Orders				
PrivateID: 8792 Address:	Work Order #: 2014-00893 Street Name:	Category Text: Park Court Problem Text: Miscellaneous Problem	Main Task Text: Reason Text:	
Lead Worker Text: Status Text: New Work Order Comment Fromact 2014 sd Request:	Assigned Crew Text: Status Date: 08/25/2014	Supervisor Text: BRIAN LEWIS Start Date:	Status: 2 End Date:	
PrivateID: 8773 Address: Lead Worker Text: Status Text: New Work Order Comment From Request:	Work Order #: 2014-00874 Street Name: AMBER Assigned Crew Text: Status Date: 07/31/2014	Category Text: Park Problem Text: Theft Supervisor Text: Start Date:	Main Task Text: Reason Text: Status: 2 End Date:	

After editing a work order, the dashboard shows 1 item ready to save:



This offline edit can be pushed to the server by clicking this button, or the data will be pushed to the server when the user goes online by clicking the "Go Online" button on the dashboard. Since going back offline again can take a few minutes, the user is warned before going online:

You are about to go back online. Are you sure you want to continue?			
No	Yes		

In this case, the user's work orders (and requests) will be pushed online and when the user later goes offline, the requests and work orders will only be available if they meet the criteria in one of the user's data drills.

Parts Inventory Prompting

If adds or edits in materials and fluids require information about where parts should be taken, users will be prompted to select a warehouse when taking records online.

Items Requiring Attention			
Tap an item in the list to resolve the issue. If you wish to discard your changes for a given record tap the X icon on its left.			
X Work Order Resources - Materials Add			
Cancel Retry			

Selecting the material will open the materials form and will display a prompt

Information Needed		
Please select which location to take the 5 Container, Front-end Load, 6 yard parts from		
yard swnasc Qty Avail: 168		
1-11A1 fltnasc Qty Avail: -145		
B1 GWH1 Qty Avail: 0		
Cancel		

So the user can select a part location.

Error handing and resolution

Errors are handled in a similar manner. When a user error is encountered that cannot be caught offline (like breaking a rule with end date and start date), the Requires Attention dialog will include the relevant record. When the user taps on the item it will open the form for the user and show the error:

Cannot save, object is invalid: WorkOrder (2014-00897): WorkOrder Task (BSENG Blue Stake Inquiry from an	
Engineering Firm): WorkOrder Employee Resource (BRIAN ADKINS Employee): Start date can not be after end date.	

The user can fix the error and click save. To continue reviewing any remaining conflicts, navigate back to the dashboard.

Conflict Resolution

If two users edit the same data on the same record, a conflict can occur. These also appear as items requiring attention during the online push.



A dialog is displayed allowing the user to choose how to handle the conflict:

Conflict Resolution	🗎 :
The record you changed was also changed by someone else. We attempted to merge your changes but the red fie	lds were in conflict. Please select which values you'd like to use, then press save.
Nicole Work Order #: 2014-00897 Status: (2) New Work Order Status Date: 08/26/2014	Nicole 2014-00897 (2) New Work Order 08/26/2014
Status Time: 🗌 12:19 AM	🗹 12:19 AM
Category: (01000) Admin Document Available: false Problem: (CSINFOADM) Info - Administrative	(01000) Admin false (CSINFOADM) Info - Administrative
Main Task: 🔲 (CSINF001) Info Calls Solid Waste	(CSINF017) Gate Arrivals
Comment From Request:	
Cause:	🗹 (04) Road Call / Drive Up
Assigned By: Assigned Date: 08/03/2014 Assigned Time: Assigned Crew: Supervisor: (140) SHANE HARPO	08/03/2014 (140) SHANE HARPO
Lead Worker: 🥣 (NES) Nicole Schmidt	
Priority: (5) To Fit Schedule Account # Proj No - Acct: Project Text: Reason: Start Date: Start Time: End Date: End Time:	(5) To Fit Schedule
Override Problem: false	false
Override Overdue: false	false
Override Leadworker: false Override Task: false	false false

Place a check next to the value you want to keep and click Save.

Note: The advanced conflict resolution available in Android mentioned here is not offered in iOS.

Inventory and Inspections Offline

Inventory data can be accessed from the modules menu, asset trees, or data drills offline. No inspection data is sent to the field, but inspection data can be collected while out in the field (as can inventory data, if desired, but GIS editing is not available).

Inspections and inventory are pushed to the server and saved just like requests and work orders. However, inspections and inventory will stay cached offline on the device even after synched to the server until the relevant dataset is scheduled to be updated. For example, a user who is collecting Sign Inspections and has the Street dataset scheduled to update on the tablet monthly will accumulate up to 30 days of offline Sign Inspection data on the tablet. Documents are not kept locally on the device for inspections and inventory once the user goes online, however.

Troubleshooting or inspecting offline data status

To get information about the status of offline data (non-GIS) on a tablet, an interface for inspecting the offline metadata is available. To get to this, go to the View Logs on the menu. Once in the Logs view, click the View Troubleshooting Tools Menu

8 🖂 📀	L	Ê Ô				🔀 🗊 🔒 9:42 AM
	ALL	EXCEPTIONS	NOTES	REST	TIMING	EMAIL A COPY CLEAR LOG
Download Offli	ne Inventory					View Troubleshooting Tools
HttpGet - 304: http://iosdev.lucity			che/Equip			

This is available online or offline. It provides 3 options:

irk.js
Additional Tools
Open Data Inspector
Clear ALL Offline Inventory Caches
Clear an Offline Inventory Cache
Bouri

The Data Inspector is for Lucity support and development purposes and is not documented for use by end users.

The Clear Offline Inventory Cache options provide metadata about the caches currently stored locally and allows one cache to be forcibly refreshed on the next go offline process.

Clear Which Inventory Cache?
Electric - Last Updated: Fri, 22 Aug 2014 07:05:22 GMT
Storm - Last Updated: Sat, 23 Aug 2014 03:22:32 GMT
Sewer - Last Updated: Sat, 23 Aug 2014 03:24:20 GMT
Common - Last Updated: Sat, 23 Aug 2014 03:24:42 GMT
Water - Last Updated: Sat, 23 Aug 2014 03:30:12 GMT
Park - Last Updated: Sat, 23 Aug 2014 03:31:32 GMT
Street - Last Updated: Sat, 23 Aug 2014 07:27:49 GMT
Equipment - Last Updated: Sat, 23 Aug 2014 14:31:34 GMT
Work - Last Updated: Mon, 25 Aug 2014 15:52:26 GMT

Apple

Existing work orders and requests are accessible from the dashboard or from the Modules menu. They are also accessible as children of inventory items that are offline. Work Orders and requests can be added through a view launched from a data drill, or from a view launched from the modules menu, or from GIS.

Toolkits and the Create Work Order and Create Request view buttons are not supported offline. Picklists for work order assets in the work order and request and PM forms are also not available offline (although the asset data can be manually entered if the user knows the asset id).

Adding and editing data

Adding and editing data offline is very similar to online. Most of the custom business logic and defaulting does not occur until the data has been saved to the server, however. For example, if a user selects a problem with a default task, that default task will not be automatically populated while offline. The user can either manually select the task or leave it blank and it will populate when the work order is pushed online.

Synchronizing data back to the server

When you are ready to be online again, you need to synchronize your changes back to the server. You cannot go online until all changes have been synchronized to the server or abandoned.

button.

Go back online by tapping the Go Online

Parts Inventory Prompting

If adds or edits in materials and fluids require information about where parts should be taken, users will be prompted to select a warehouse when taking records online.

Cancel
Please select which location to take the 10 HYDRANT STEM, EXTENSION A D 4 1/2" X 12" parts from
UTWD-1 UTWD Qty Avail: 28
UTWD-2 UTWD Qty Avail: 50

Error handing and resolution

If errors are encountered (errors that cannot be caught by simple required, min/max, valid value error checking), users will be prompted with the error message. For example, if the user enters an end date that is prior to a start date on a work order.

ashboard	Work Orde	rs	🛢 🛢 👘
Work Order # 16-182813	Category * PPP06 - Balifields		
Status 2 New Work Order	Problem PRKP32 Goose Control		
Status Date Status Time 8/19/2016 12:53 PM	Main Task		
Asset		nment From Red	quest
	Conflict Encou		
Location	Cannot save, object WorkOrder (16-182813): not be after end date., (16-182813): WorkOrdert value of -16 is below ti allowed value of		
Assigned Crew O31 311 1	Would you like to abando to this record		Overrides
Supervisor * 0277 Kenyetta Gibbs			i
Lead Worker 0309 Greg Smith		red Time	Overdue
Priority	Start Date 9/06/2016	Start Time	Leadworker
Account #	End Date 9/04/2016		
Proj No - Acct			Supervisor

If you click Yes this prompt, the record will be abandoned and the sync will continue. If you click No, you will be able to edit the record and hit Save and the sync will continue.



Warnings will be handled with a message dialog with a "Next" button to page through all of the warnings



Troubleshooting or inspecting offline data status

To get information about the status of offline data (non-GIS) on a tablet, an interface for inspecting the offline metadata is available. To get to this, select Offline Data Inspector from the menu on the dashboard.

This screen provides information about what caches are downloaded to the device, when they were downloaded, what size they are, and how many local edits are currently on the device. You can clear a specific cache (which will force it to try and download on the next Go Offline) by clicking edit. You can also discard all of your local offline changes through this Edit menu.

< Dashboard	Offline Data Inspector	Edit
Name	Date	Size
Equipment	Tue, 06 Sep 2016 07:02:59 GMT	46 MB
Street	Tue, 06 Sep 2016 07:04:25 GMT	76 MB
Park	Tue, 06 Sep 2016 07:04:26 GMT	<1 MB
Water	Tue, 06 Sep 2016 07:04:26 GMT	<1 MB
Work	Tue, 06 Sep 2016 07:04:28 GMT	<1 MB
Common	Tue, 06 Sep 2016 07:04:29 GMT	<1 MB
Sewer	Tue, 06 Sep 2016 07:04:29 GMT	<1 MB
Storm	Tue, 06 Sep 2016 07:04:31 GMT	2 MB
Electric	Tue, 06 Sep 2016 07:04:31 GMT	<1 MB
Offline Additions/Edits		1 Record(s)

Documents while offline

Documents can be attached to new or existing records while offline. Existing documents are not available while offline.

Attaching documents works the same offline as online. Unlike the online version however, documents added offline require a description entered by the user.

Documents added offline are available during the current offline session for all modules.

1 🗕 🛟 🚱 ⊾ 🏛 🖓 🛟 🗅 I	Ŷ			11:33 AM
Park Work Orders				۹.
Park Work Orders				
PrivatelD: Address: Lead Worker Text: Status Text: Comment From Request:	Work Order #: Street Name: Assigned Crew Text: Status Date:	Category Text: Facility Building Problem Text: fire alarm Supervisor Text: Start Date:	Main Task Text: Reason Text: Status: End Date:	
PrivateID: 8773	Work Order #: 2014-00874	Category Text: Park	Main Task Text:	
Address:	Street Name: AMBER	Problem Text: Theft	Reason Text:	

Pushing the edits to the server will save the documents to the server and will leave the documents on the tablet for use locally while offline. Going online will also save the documents to the server, but when the user goes offline again, the documents will no longer be available. This is true of all modules (including inventory and inspections).

Offline Workflows

When a user goes offline, the tablet application downloads a cache of all of the inventory data so that it is available while the user is offline. The tablet application also reviews the user's dashboard for any Work Order or Request data that is marked for offline use and downloads that as well.

Downloading and processing the inventory datasets for offline use can be time consuming depending on the processor on the tablet and therefore is optimized to only download updates when needed. The following diagrams show some example workflows:

Example 1

Tablet User #1 does not need current inventory data. The data will download the first time and may not download again for a month or 3 months or even a year. The system knows this based on his login. It will check each time he goes offline but if he does not need an update, it will not download an update to the inventory data.



Example 2

Tablet User #2 is working on a project where he needs weekly updates to the Parks dataset on his tablet. All data will download the first time. The system will check each time he goes offline to see if the Parks dataset is older than 1 week. If it is, it will download it when he goes offline.



Inventory Data Cache

Inventory data and the direct children of inventory records (such as comment grids, status grids, field ties) are cached nightly. Inspections and tests, construction records, work projects, and other non-inventory modules are not cached nightly.

By default this cache happens at 2:00 am directly after the 1:45 app recycle.

The time to complete a cache will vary based on how much data you are caching, your database server, and your web server where mobile server is installed. It can range from 20 minutes to 4 hours (or more in some cases although this is cause for review).

In addition to inventory data and the direct children of inventory records, views/forms/grids are also cached into the nightly static cache. This also will include picklists for fields on forms (including relationship style picklists which can be very large).

Views/Data

You can control what data goes out to the field so that you can streamline the experience and minimize the load on the server and the bandwidth required to go offline.

Configuring what data is potentially available to offline users

Configure which views are available offline using the Offline Mobile flag in the view builder. And in the grid builder (for children).

Ă	View	Builder	-		x
View Name Alternate View Name	Sewer Node				
Step 1: Select a Grid	Field Ties sts mplates ent Grid	Step 2: Select a Grid Sewer Node New Grid Edit Grid Step 3: Select a Form for Grid (optional) Sewer Node Form New Form Edit Form Help Mouse over a control to see its description.	Preview		>
✓ Offline Mobile ✓ This is the defaul	t view for the Sewer Nodes	Save	Canc	el	.#

Ă				Grid Builder			_ D X
Grid Name Grid Type Description	Sewer Node Field Ties Sewer Node Field Ties	¥	Caption	Sewer Node Field Ties	Pag	e Size	10 ~
Column Edi Available Greated Bi Creation D. Field Tie R Last Modifi Last Modifi	Columns ate Time ec # ed By ed Date		Sec	ve ted Columns uence rumber I lie text	The second secon	A A Ht	Peties Display Header Sequence number MobileWidt Field RelatedFielk NZ_SE0_NUM eader ext to display at the top of the kumm in the grid.
Help Mouse ove	r a control to see its descri	iption.					

In addition to these settings, starting in Lucity 2016r2, we will also automatically cache views and forms of any module which is flagged for offline in a data drill on an offline dashboard frame for any users in your system.

Enabling the Android or Apple (iOS) cache

Android and Apple caches are separate caches.

- We produce cache files with a file extension .json for Android
 - These are json formatted text files
 - Pre gzipped to json.gz file
 - The json.gz file is streamed to the client
 - Android post processes the data into a local SQLite database
- We produce cache files with a file extension .db for Apple devices
 - These are SQLite database files
 - Pre gzipped to a db.gz file
 - The db.gz file is streamed to the client

By default, only the Android cache is refreshed nightly. If you want to use Lucity offline on an Apple device, you must enable nightly caching for iOS.

М	obile •		
^	Setting Description	Setting Value	Setting Ca
	Log device latitude and longitude	TRUE	Mobile
	Max Columns Returned	20	Mobile
	Maximum number of days to store device location history	30	Mobile
_	Maximum records to return per request for mobile	100	Mobile
	Update the offline Android cache nightly	TRUE	Mobile
	Update the offline iOS cache nightly	TRUE	Mobile
1	Url for the Lucity Mobile Server Virtual Directory	https://demo.lucity.net/Luc	ityMobileDev Mobile

Configuring how often your users get updates

The frequency of tablet downloads is controlled by the Mobile Offline Cache Setup module (under the General menu). This is accessible in Lucity Web, Lucity Mobile, and Lucity Desktop. In order to use this module in Lucity Web and Lucity Mobile a view must be imported or created for the module.

╬	city	Home Mobile Off	Menu Nine Cachin ₁ X	<u>Favorites</u>	Open Views	<u>Modules</u>			
ŝ					Mobile Of	fline Caching	Setup		
<u>i</u> - 1	r 📀 🖪	2			Mobile Cache	e Setup 📈			10 💌
	Cache Rec #	Name	Interval Text						
순 🖻	9	Electric	Monthly						
순 🖻	8	Storm	Monthly						
수 🖻	7	Sewer	Monthly						
순 🖻	6	Common	Monthly						
순 🖻	5	Work	Weekly						
순 🖻	4	Water	Monthly						
순 🖻	3	Park	Monthly						
순 🖻	2	Street	Monthly						
순 🖻	1	Equipment	Monthly						

By default all tablets will get all databases monthly. It is important to review and change this to fit the workflows required. Monthly may be too frequent in many cases. Tablets which do not need access to datasets should be configured to not download the datasets.

To configure what is downloaded on a user or group basis, add an override record to the Mobile Cache Setup Detail child of Mobile Offline Caching Setup. These will override the global parent values. The bottom screen cap, Park is configured to download Monthly for all users except Nicole. Nicole gets the data weekly.

- 🎮	3	Park	Monthly		
	Mobile Cach	e Setup Deta	il (1)		
		csv	×		Mobile Cache Setup Detail 📈
		Type Text	Name	Interval Text	
	e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e	User	Nicole	Weekly	

One of the picklist options for Interval is "Never". This allows an administrator to optimize and not send down datasets that a user or group of users will not need. Downloading too many datasets will cause the tablet to take a long time to go offline and will put unnecessary load on the web server.

Performance Considerations

The performance of the Go Offline process is strongly correlated to the processor and memory available on the tablet for Android. Writing to disk is the most expensive activity during a Go Offline process. Slow or older tablets can take 10 to 20 times longer than newer faster tablets at writing information to disk. Keep this in mind when deciding which tablets will use offline data, how much offline data to push to the tablets, and how often the offline data is updated.

For Apple devices, the device model (how old it is) will affect download. Offline is only officially tested on iPads (not touch or iPhone) and we have good luck with most modern Apple devices. The iPad 2nd generation and Mini 1st generation will not perform well.

Additional optimizations that can be made include the following (in order of importance):

- Remove views which are not used or un-assign forms and child views from them or remove the Offline mobile flag.
- Do not add value lookups to forms unless they are needed. Remove value lookups from inventory and inspection forms that are not used or are not important. The default imported forms for Lucity have many fields which may not be necessary for your workflow.
- Remove fields from forms that are not used.

Additionally, you should enable dynamic content compression (if not already enabled) on your web server. This will allow for greater compression of data from the live/short term data cache (Work Orders and Requests).

L	Add Roles and Features Wizard	_ D X
Before You Begin Installation Type Server Selection Server Roles Features Confirmation Results	Select one or more roles to install on the selected server. Roles Remote Access Remote Desktop Services Volume Activation Services Volume Activation Services Volume Activation Services Common HTTP Features (Installed) Common HTTP Features (Installed) Ferformance (Installed) Verformance (Installed) Static Content Compression (Installed) Security (Installed) Security (Installed) Security (Installed) FTP Server IIS Hostable Web Core	DESTINATION SERVER WIN-SESOTTONMDM
	<u>د</u> ا۱۱۱ ک	
	< Previous Next :	> Install Cancel



Configuring GIS for use with offline maps requires deploying feature services and raster tile packages (if desired).

Configuring Feature Services

Feature Services have special requirements for offline usage. They must have Sync enabled. This is an example of a feature service configured for offline use:

Service Editor					
Connection: arcgis on localhos	t_6080 (admin) Service Name: parks				
Connection: arcgis on localhos General Parameters Capabilities Mapping Feature Access Pooling Processes Caching Item Description	L_6080 (admin) Service Name: parks Feature Access REST URL: http://localhost:6080/arcgis/rest/services/parks/FeatureServer SOAP URL: http://localhost:6080/arcgis/services/parks/MapServer/FeatureServer Operations allowed: Create Delete Query Soap URL: Apply default z-value When inserting or updating features with no z-values, set z-value to: Operations allowed on features created by other users : Operations allowed on features created by other users : Operations allowed on features created by other users : Advanced Options				
	OK Cancel				

Prior to deploying this feature service:

- Global Ids were added to the datasets
- Data archiving was enabled on the datasets
- Symbology was simplified in the project
- Joins were removed
- Some changes were made to ensure that all layers in the map service were in a consistent state (either all versioned or all un-versioned; in the above example they are all versioned).
- The ArcMap project database connection was switched to a user with edit permissions to the geodatabase

- Switched operational (non-tile cache) services to use the same spatial reference for all operational services
- The analyze tool was run in ArcMap as a part of the map service creation and all issues were resolved that were critical

Another consideration is the map service is the number of features returned. This can be bumped up if desired:

Service Editor						
Connection: arcgis on localhost_6080 (admin) Service Name: parks						
General Parameters Capabilities Mapping Feature Access Pooling	Parameters Document Location Original Document: D:\arcgisserver\resources\parks Anti-Aliasing Anti-Aliasing: Text Anti-Aliasing:	s.mxd None v Force v				
Processes Caching Item Description	Properties Maximum number of records returned by the server: Cluster Choose the cluster hosting the service: Output Directory Directory: D:\arcgissen	1000 Advanced default v ver\directories\arcgisoutput v				
		OK Cancel				

Keep in mind that if the server is returning more features, the offline map process will be slower and will generate more load on the server.

Once a feature service is configured, the map service in Lucity Admin should be configured for the new offline feature service:

+ GIS	Map Services													
	Name		Order	Opacity	Base Map?	Tiled?	Has Feature Service?	Disable Local Caching	Require Logon?	ιI	ass	M U	Offline Mobile Feature Service Url	P
	image	jis/rest/services/rasterimageservice/ImageServer	1											
	SecureInfrastructureWithCred	D/arcgis/rest/services/InfrastructureNewDemoSecure/MapS	3							t., *	^{кк}			Г
	SecureBaseMapWithCred	D/arcgis/rest/services/parcelsTiledSecure/MapServer	0			•				t. *	кк			Г
	SecureInfrastructure	1/arcgis/rest/services/InfrastructureNewDemoSecure/MapS	3						•	t. *	××			Γ
	SecureBaseMap	D/arcgis/rest/services/parcelsTiledSecure/MapServer	0		V	~								
	InfrastructureNewDemo]/arcgis/rest/services/InfrastructureNewDemo/MapServer	5									ľ		٦
►	Parks	D/arcgis/rest/services/parks/MapServer	6										http://demo.lucity.net:6080/arcgis/rest/services/parks/FeatureServe	
	QA Tablet Parcels]/arcgis/rest/services/parcels/MapServer	2									1		r
	QA Tablet Demo)/arcgis/rest/services/NewDemo/MapServer	4											Γ
	QA World	e.com/arcgis/rest/services/World_Street_Map/MapServer/	1		7									

If a feature service url is provided, Lucity will assume that the map can be taken offline with the provided feature service url.

Tile Caches

It is possible to side load tile caches on the device to provide a basemap. For details on creating tile cache tpk files, see Esri documentation. Once a tpk is created, it can be copied to the tablet. Create a folder in a consistent hive on the android file system and store the tpk in the same location on each device.

Here the tile cache is being copied to a new folder created on the root of the tablet called "LucityMobileSideLoad".



In Lucity Admin, the tiled service used in the map is updated with the location of this tiled cache stored locally: %root%/LucityMobileSideLoad/raster.tpk

The direction	of the slashes	s in the above	relative patl	n are important.
	or the studies		i clucive puci	i ui c important.

2016/LucityGIS
2016/LucityGIS
2016/LucityGIS
2016/LucityGIS
arcgis/rest/servi
arcgis/rest/servi
2016/LucityGIS
k.tpk
pk

When going offline, the Lucity application will look for side loaded maps and load them for use on the device with an offline map.

For Apple devices, these should be loaded using File Sharing on iTunes. Connect the device to a PC or Mac and open iTunes. Click apps and scroll down to the bottom of the page and look for File Sharing.

••• ↔ ► ↦ ○			É
$\langle \rangle$			Nicole's iPad
Nicole's iPad	Apps	Scroll down	
Settings	Sort by Size	ି (0
🗐 Summary	Lucity 2.0	40.9 MB Remove	Home Screens
∬ Music ☐ Movies	Lucity	40.8 MB Remove	
TV Shows Photos			
(i) Info			Pag
On My Device J Music Movies		-	Fay

Click Add and select the TPKs you want to have available. No folder can be created, it will be stored alongside the Lucity application in a dedicated folder.

File Sharing

The apps listed below can transfer documents betwee	een your iPad and this computer.
---	----------------------------------

Apps	Lucity 2.0 Documents	
kindle	Model.sqlite	4.4 MB 8/15/16, 11:14 PM
kindle Kindle	Model.sqlite-shm	32 KB 8/17/16, 3:06 PM
	Model.sqlite-wal	zero KB 8/15/16, 11:14 PM
Lucity 2.0		
		2
		Add Save to

You must Sync after adding the TPK.

For iOS, the system will ignore any folder names specified in the Offline Mobile path in GIS Map Services and will only do a file name match to match the TPK with the basemap.